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          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Good morning.

          3  Welcome.  Today the Committee on Youth Services will

          4  review the operation of the 2004 Summer Youth

          5  Employment Program planned for the implementation of

          6  next summer's SYEP, and take testimony on Proposed

          7  Resolution No. 653-A, which calls upon the Mayor and

          8  State to negotiate and reach a firm agreement on

          9  funding for the Summer Youth Employment Program at a

         10  minimum of Fiscal Year 2002 level, in advance of the

         11  budget process, and calling upon the Mayor to

         12  include such funding for the SYEP in both the

         13  Preliminary and Executive Budget proposals, in order

         14  to ensure timely and effective implementation of the

         15  Summer Youth Employment Program.

         16                 Since I have been the Chairperson of

         17  this Committee, the Council has held at least one

         18  yearly hearing on the Summer Youth Employment

         19  Program, usually in January or February.  This year

         20  we are discussing this important program even

         21  earlier.  Why? Because more than any other program,

         22  the Summer Youth Employment Program suffers the most

         23  every year due to the timing of the City and ever

         24  later State Budget process.  And I want to do

         25  everything that I can and as early as I can to
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          2  change the way the process affects the SYEP.

          3                 I have introduced Proposed Resolution

          4  653- A in order to address key issues with respect

          5  to the SYEP, timing, commitment, and funding level.

          6                 First, timing.  The last State Budget

          7  was not agreed to until August, over one month after

          8  the start of the Summer Youth Employment Program.

          9  The City budget must be passed before July 1st of

         10  every year, only a few days before the start of the

         11  SYEP.  How can providers establish their budgets, or

         12  effectively plan for a program, when funding has not

         13  been resolved until after the program is started?

         14  It is unfair, and I call upon the Mayor and the

         15  State to negotiate and reach a firm agreement on

         16  funding for the SYEP in advance of the budget

         17  process, so our youth are no longer held hostage to

         18  the all, too drawn out, budgetary dramas that occur

         19  at the City and State level.

         20                 Commitment, speaking of budgetary

         21  dramas.  As you know, every year the Mayor fails to

         22  recognize funding for SYEP in the Preliminary Budget

         23  forcing the Council to negotiate funding for this

         24  program into the Executive Budget.  The Mayor cuts.

         25  The Council restores.  One of our room 9 journalists
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          2  calls this the Summer Youth Jobs Dance.  It is time

          3  to stop the Summer Job Two Step.

          4                 I love being able to take credit

          5  along with my Council colleagues for restoring

          6  summer jobs for our kids, but it is not fair to our

          7  kids.  It is not fair to our providers, it is not

          8  even fair to DYCD.  This year, I call upon the Mayor

          9  to show his commitment to our City's youth and

         10  include full funding for this valuable program in

         11  his Preliminary and Executive Budget proposals.  The

         12  time for the Summer Job Dance is over.

         13                 Funding:  I want to see the SYEP

         14  funded at a minimum of Fiscal Year 2002 levels.  At

         15  that time, approximately $58 million in City, State,

         16  and Federal funding was allocated to the SYEP,

         17  resulting in the creation of over 43,000 jobs.

         18  Unfortunately, since that time, funding for the SYEP

         19  has been progressively declining each year,

         20  particularly on the part of the State.  In fact,

         21  last summer only slightly more than 34,000 City

         22  youth participated in the SYEP.  That is a loss of

         23  over 9,000 jobs in three years.  I am sure that I

         24  speak for all of my colleagues when I say that we

         25  will not sit idly by while the SYEP is stripped of
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          2  funding year after year.

          3                 As a Democrat, I just joined in a

          4  political campaign where the President was blamed

          5  for a loss of jobs, I will not be a hypocrite.  We

          6  need to fight to bring the level of jobs for our

          7  young people back to, at least, the level we found

          8  it in when we came into office.  A truly enlightened

          9  budgeting process would recognize the fact that

         10  money spent on the SYEP is an investment in our most

         11  important resources, our youth and our

         12  neighborhoods.  I want to assure you that I

         13  personally, this Committee and the entire Council

         14  will continue to work with the community to ensure

         15  that New York City as a fully funded SYEP that

         16  provides our youth with the skills that will allow

         17  them to become the leaders of tomorrow.

         18                 And now before I welcome our first

         19  witness, Commissioner Mullgrav, I would like to

         20  recognize the Department of Youth and Community

         21  Development's work on the SYEP.  As you know, I

         22  fully supported the transfer of this program from

         23  the now defunct Department of Employment to DYCD.  I

         24  want to commend Commissioner Mullgrav for doing more

         25  with less, and running a better program.
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          2                 Last summer wasn't perfect, for

          3  example, I would like to know more about debit

          4  cards.  But it was a good, well- run summer.

          5                 I know that this summer's program,

          6  that since this summer's program, DYCD has formed

          7  focus groups to discuss areas for improvement.  I

          8  look forward to hearing more about that, this

          9  morning, as well.

         10                 And with that, I would like to

         11  introduce our first witness, Commissioner Jeanne

         12  Mullgrav.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Thank you,

         14  Chairman Fidler. My name is Jeanne Mullgrav, and I

         15  am the Commissioner of the Department of Youth and

         16  Community Development.  With me is Deputy

         17  Commissioner Suzanne Lynn, who oversees this

         18  program; and Dan Simon, who is the Director of the

         19  program.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  discuss the NYC Summer Youth Employment Program,

         22  otherwise known as SYEP.  We thank the members of

         23  the City Council, and particularly you, for your

         24  support and for your understanding of this very,

         25  very critical program.  DYCD is very proud of the
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          2  accomplishments that we were able to realize during

          3  this past summer.

          4                 As you know, during Summer of 2003,

          5  the Mayor transferred and relocated Youth Employment

          6  Services to DYCD. Locating youth development

          7  programs within a single agency, and the employment

          8  programs, created an opportunity to improve and

          9  coordinate a range of initiatives.  It also allowed

         10  us to maintain service delivery during a very

         11  difficult, fiscal climate.

         12                 DYCD immediately began to overhaul

         13  SYEP with modifications and improvements never

         14  before seen in 30 years, and I would like to say

         15  that I was in the program when I was 18- years old

         16  some 24 years ago, and the program that we inherited

         17  looked very much like the program that I

         18  participated in, but no more. Programmatic

         19  innovations and creative solutions started with the

         20  input that we received first hand from the many

         21  stakeholders.  That included input that we received

         22  to create the request for proposal, and we had

         23  ongoing and regular feedback throughout the

         24  administration of the program, which concluded

         25  August 28th, 2004.
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          2                 This year, SYEP participants not only

          3  became camp counselors, provided clerical

          4  assistance, and worked at cultural institutions,

          5  such as museums and libraries, but also worked on

          6  web design, video production, in- fashion design,

          7  and at telephone and Internet Research Offices.  The

          8  major changes to the SYEP program included:

          9                 1.  A very flexible program that

         10  allowed young people the ability to work 25 hours

         11  over any five- day period that included Saturdays

         12  and Sundays.  This feature accommodated youth who

         13  needed flexibility in their schedules to participate

         14  in summer school, and also for religious observance.

         15                 DYCD also introduced an educational

         16  component.  This provided young people with the life

         17  skills necessary to succeed over the long- term.

         18  The 17 hours of educational services included:

         19  Financial literacy, career exploration, post-

         20  secondary education information, health education,

         21  and workplace readiness.

         22                 DYCD's commitment to workforce

         23  investment and financial education went beyond the

         24  summer program.  As you know, the 2004 Theme for

         25  Youth Week, an annual event sponsored by DYCD was
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          2  money smarts for youth investing in our future.  The

          3  goal of Youth Week 2004, which ran from July 29th to

          4  August 6th was to launch a year- round effort to

          5  promote financial awareness and literacy, encourage

          6  responsible money management skills, and establish a

          7  foundation of economic understanding for young

          8  people. Approximately 3,000 SYEP participants took

          9  part in the week- long activities that included, a

         10  kick- off breakfast hosted by CitiBank; Economic

         11  Awareness and Money Management Seminars; a College

         12  and Career Exploration Fair with emphasis on

         13  scholarships and grants; Money Smarts Exposed in

         14  each of the Borough Halls; visits to a commercial

         15  bank, in some instances, young people for the first

         16  time got a tour from a bank, as well as to the

         17  Workforce One Career Centers, the Federal Reserve,

         18  Bloomberg LP, and the Museum of American Financial

         19  History.

         20                 Another important change in the

         21  program with an emphasis on low- income and high

         22  unemployment areas, while SYEP is opened to all New

         23  York City youth between the ages of 14 and 21, DYCD

         24  is committed to providing opportunities to youth

         25  most in need. The SYEP RFP outline a Borough-
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          2  funding formula that took into account not only the

          3  numbers of youth in each Borough, but also the

          4  numbers of low- income youth in each Borough

          5  relative to the City as a whole.

          6                 Moreover, contractors were encouraged

          7  to recruit from designated, high unemployment zip

          8  codes with the objective of reaching youth most in

          9  need of employment programs.  Another area was a

         10  focus on employment for youth with disabilities.  We

         11  know all too often young people with disabilities

         12  are left isolated and unable to participate fully in

         13  the workforce.  Recognizing untapped human resources

         14  among youth with disabilities, we encourage

         15  proposals to recruit youth with disabilities to

         16  apply for participation in the program.

         17                 The RFP offered the option of a

         18  higher price per participant to serve youth with

         19  disability, often one of the reasons why contractors

         20  don't take advantage of the opportunity to have

         21  young people who are disabled in their program is

         22  that they don't have a cost for transportation and

         23  other needed services. Twenty- two SYEP providers

         24  were contracted to serve approximately 1,100 youth

         25  with disabilities this summer.  In an effort to
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          2  expose young people to the diversity of real world

          3  labor experiences, we placed 10 percent of our young

          4  people in private sector jobs.  The goals of these

          5  placements was to provide an employment experience

          6  that emphasized the development and practice of real

          7  world labor expectations.

          8                 A final area was that SYEP

          9  Incorporated Web- based Administration, DCYD move

         10  from a labor intensive and predominantly paper-

         11  driven application placement, timekeeping and

         12  payment process to an automated process available

         13  via the Internet.  This year for the first time

         14  applications were available on- line through the

         15  DYCD web site, completed applications were submitted

         16  on- line by SYEP contractors, youth were able to

         17  track the status of their applications on the DYCD

         18  web site, a decentralized web- based, timekeeping

         19  system available to SYEP contractors to replace

         20  centralized timekeeping.  Similarly, SYEP

         21  participants could check on their hours and payroll

         22  status.

         23                 DYCD worked with Corporate Staff

         24  services, our payroll vendors, to move from paper

         25  checks to the electronic debit cards.  The vendors
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          2  also made available to participants their individual

          3  pay histories via the Internet and an Integrated

          4  Voice Response system.

          5                 Perhaps the most noteworthy

          6  innovation was our payroll via our debit card.  DYCD

          7  introduced an electronic payroll system for a number

          8  of reasons, most importantly the safety of our

          9  participants.  Electronic payroll was also

         10  introduced to complement the financial literacy

         11  component in the SYEP curriculum and to expose the

         12  youth participants to banking beyond check cashing

         13  services.  Electronic delivery of payroll eliminated

         14  the cost of issuing and distributing paper checks,

         15  and reduced seasonal administrative staff by 75

         16  percent from over 200 to 53.  DYCD invested these

         17  savings back into the program in the form of 750

         18  additional job slots for youth; and DYCD was able to

         19  focus more attention on program quality, and less on

         20  payroll administration.

         21                 Although there were many

         22  achievements, the SYEP 2004 experience has prompted

         23  us to start planning for next year's program

         24  immediately.  Since the program ended, we have

         25  conducted Focus Groups with DYCD staff, CBOs, and
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          2  youth participants to obtain constructive analysis

          3  of the program as we plan for future years.  The

          4  primary goal is to fine tune existing systems to

          5  produce an even more efficient program.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  discuss SYEP.  My staff and I are pleased to answer

          8  any question or address any comments that you may

          9  have.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you,

         11  Commissioner.  We have been joined by Council Member

         12  Dennis Gallagher.

         13                 Let me start with an open- ended

         14  question, which is you formed groups to discuss

         15  improving the program for next year. Have you gotten

         16  any feedback from those groups yet, and what areas

         17  do they seem to be most concerned with?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Overall - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  That they are

         20  probably sitting here, so they are probably going to

         21  tell us anyway.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  They will

         23  tell you, and I think it is a good story to tell.  I

         24  think, overall, we received a lot of positive

         25  feedback on the management and administration of the
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          2  program.  I think, you know, some of their concerns

          3  have to do with very detailed issues.  For example,

          4  can we start the program earlier so that they can

          5  get the documents, necessary documents to us?

          6  Absolutely.  This was something that last year was

          7  challenge for us, because as you know, we wanted to

          8  make sure that we had a competitive procurement on

          9  the streets, rated, that we were able to secure

         10  quality vendors in time; that we were able to set up

         11  appropriate work sites; and, that we were able to

         12  transition to a more efficient and technologically

         13  appropriate system.  All of that, we did in record

         14  time.

         15                 Clearly, going into this year without

         16  having to do a solicitation, we can have more time

         17  set aside for the application process and start a

         18  little earlier.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I suppose the

         20  only systemwide issue that I heard about last year

         21  was the debit card system.  Can you tell us a little

         22  bit more about how that worked, and if it going to

         23  change at all for SYEP 2005?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  We believe

         25  that young people should have the same types of
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          2  experiences that all of us do as middle class

          3  people.  Most of us have an ATM card in our back

          4  pocket.  And we thought that exposing young people

          5  to this technology is an important thing.  We also

          6  felt that, in the past, their exposure has been

          7  limited only to check cashing services.

          8                 We also knew that in some

          9  communities, unfortunately, there were real security

         10  risks to having a paper check, in that, you know,

         11  the kids would, first of all, have to get up at, and

         12  this was a tradition back when I was in the program,

         13  get up at four o'clock in the morning to try to be

         14  the first person on line to get your check.  And

         15  then, you know, run to check cashing place, so that

         16  you could be the first person on line at the check

         17  cashing place, and then run home with five of your

         18  friends so that you wouldn't have to lose your check

         19  to the local bullies.  We have avoided all of that

         20  by having an electronic system, and a debit card.

         21                 We also enabled them to use that ATM

         22  card, just like you and I could at many of the local

         23  stores, the Duane Read or Staples, for example.

         24  Many of the young people use the monies that they

         25  earn over the summer for school supplies, for things
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          2  that are necessaries in their lives.

          3                 This, we see, was a tremendous boom

          4  to their experience, and complemented what they were

          5  also learning on a day to- day basis.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well I am not

          7  really sure I understand, well I certainly

          8  understand the bully issue.  I don't understand how

          9  the plastic cards differ from paper checks being

         10  just as bully able.  So maybe you can explain that

         11  to me a little bit better.  I don't really get that.

         12    You know, I assume that you have to distribute the

         13  cards.  I assume that people have to get them, and

         14  that they are just a subject to, you know, you run

         15  to the ATM and take cash out or whatever, as a paper

         16  check at a check cashing place.  So...

         17                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  People use

         18  those cards in many, many different ways, that was

         19  the whole idea of having the debit cards, was that

         20  they were able to use them in lots of different,

         21  either commercial bank.  They were able to use them

         22  in stores, or any place that a debit card would be

         23  acceptable, in a restaurant, in a supermarket.

         24                 Did you want to add to that?

         25                 MR. BRUNO:  Well typically when you
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          2  distribute a paper check, the youth would have to go

          3  and cash it right away, because the check would be

          4  voided after a certain amount of time. The debit

          5  card allowed them to hold the money for as long as

          6  they wanted, the card is valid for a year, and they

          7  could spend it, you know, whenever they wanted to.

          8  You know, it holds the money for them for a full

          9  year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  Are there

         11  fees associated with the use of the debit card?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  There are

         13  fees associated with the use of all debit cards and

         14  ATM cards.  And we work with our provider to make

         15  sure that we could find and identify the most

         16  competitive rates that were available, as well as

         17  work with several banking institutions, Washington

         18  Mutual is one of them, Commerce Bank was another, to

         19  make sure that fees were waived for participants.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So, what I am

         21  trying to get at is a concern that was raised to me,

         22  you know, when you have a paper check you do have

         23  the option, if you are bankable, of going into the

         24  bank and depositing that check into a checking

         25  account, into a savings account.  There is no fee

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  for that, and you get 100 percent of your, the value

          3  of your check.  Is that possible with the debit card

          4  system?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Absolutely.

          6  They are allowed one transaction each pay period

          7  that is free that can take the form, if they want

          8  to, put that in as a deposit in their bank account,

          9  they can do that for free.  Or they could use, there

         10  is a transcheck that they could use, that is also

         11  for free.  So there are absolutely ways that they

         12  can access their money for free.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And is that the

         14  case, I mean, if they go into any bank in the City

         15  of New York, any, you know, commercial or savings

         16  bank, they come in with this week's debit card, come

         17  in and say I want to deposit my full check, that

         18  they can do that without costs.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  It depends on

         20  what the bank's fees might be.  But we certainly

         21  have made available to them two banks that had

         22  numerous branches, and also the locations of those

         23  branches where they could do that, yes, for free.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So then if a

         25  young person at an account at a bank other than one
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          2  of those two banks, or two banking institutions, I

          3  guess, companies, they might well have had to pay

          4  the fee to deposit their paycheck.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  It depends.

          6  If they got cash and put it in their bank, no, there

          7  would not be any fees or if they used the

          8  transcheck, there would not be any fees.  If they

          9  used their ATM cards, and that banking institution

         10  charged fees, there would be fees.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Explain the

         12  transcheck to me, how does one get a transcheck,

         13  instead of a debit card, or from their debit card?

         14                 MR. BRUNO:  The youth would

         15  distribute a transcheck, it requires and

         16  authorization code that they would call the bank,

         17  the bank, the SYEP bank holding those wages.  They

         18  would call the bank, they would get an authorization

         19  code for the amount of money that they wanted to put

         20  on that check.  It is basically an ATM transaction

         21  over the phone for a specific amount of money.   It

         22  helps with the limitation of an ATM that can only

         23  distribute 20 dollar bills.  So you get right down

         24  to the penny, all of your money through a

         25  transcheck.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  All right.  So,

          3  you get your ATM card on pay day, you have to call,

          4  what is the SYEP bank?

          5                 MR. BRUNO:  Money Network.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So you have to

          7  call Money Network, I am not familiar with Money

          8  Network, is that a physical place, or is it in Iowa

          9  some place that we call by telephone?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Virtually.

         11                 MR. BRUNO:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So it is not a

         13  physical place, it is a virtual bank.  We call them,

         14  and they get you your transcheck how?

         15                 MR. BRUNO:  Well you would know in a

         16  variety of ways what your balance was.  But

         17  depending on how much you wanted to take out, if you

         18  wanted to take the full amount out, then you know

         19  the operator would tell what your balance is.  You

         20  put that amount right on the check with an

         21  authorization code.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  But we have a

         23  virtual bank, and we are looking at a real check.

         24  Where, when did we move from virtuality into

         25  reality?  I mean how do we get the real check?  I am
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          2  being very practical in the question.

          3                 MR. BRUNO:  The contractor

          4  distributed these checks to the youth, once you have

          5  an amount and authorization code to that amount, you

          6  now have a check for that amount of money.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So the

          8  contractors had these blank transchecks, and how

          9  does the amount get onto the transcheck, I am still,

         10  I am not understanding.

         11                 MR. BRUNO:  The youth would call

         12  Money Network and request that amount.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Right.

         14                 MR. BRUNO:  The authorization code

         15  authorizes that amount to that check.  It then

         16  reduces the amount of money in their account onto

         17  that check.  So that check - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Mr. Bruno, I

         19  understand the theory, I am asking for the reality.

         20  I am the vendors now.  Now I am holding these

         21  transchecks, and this happens by computer, it

         22  happens by telephone call, it happens by pen.

         23                 MR. BRUNO:  By telephone call.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:   So, someone

         25  then has to call the provider from Money Net and
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          2  say, Joe's got $37.46 you can put on a transcheck

          3  for them.  That is what you are telling me?

          4                 MR. BRUNO:  That is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And who signs

          6  the check?

          7                 MR. BRUNO:  The authorization code is

          8  the signature on the check.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  The

         10  authorization code is the signature on the check.

         11  So now I have a transcheck, and I bank at Immigrant.

         12    So I take transcheck to Immigrant, and Immigrant

         13  is going to honor this transcheck as if it were a

         14  City of New York paycheck.  Is that correct?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Yes.  Jose

         16  Ivy - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Does someone

         18  else have to come up to the podium here and answer

         19  these questions?

         20                 MR. IVY:  My name is Jose Ivy.  I

         21  work in the Technology Department at DYCD.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.

         23                 MR. IVY:  Essentially the youth are

         24  given one debit card for the entire summer.  And

         25  that debit card, each week or each two weeks, each
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          2  pay period gets credited with the amount they get

          3  paid.

          4                 The contractors and virtually all of

          5  the participants were given transchecks.  In fact,

          6  in one large shipment of cards we put one transcheck

          7  in with each card.  The transcheck does not require

          8  a signature.  It does not require any writing on it.

          9    Once they call the bank, Money Network, Money

         10  Network then authorizes that specific check for an

         11  amount.  That check is not good until they authorize

         12  it.  Once they authorize it, it is then taken to any

         13  bank or financial institution, and they honor it as

         14  if it had been a check issued from Money Network.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So this is not

         16  something that can happen every two weeks for

         17  somebody.  This could happen once.

         18                 MR. IVY:  No, it can happen as often

         19  as they like. They can use as many transchecks

         20  throughout the summer as they like.  Money Network

         21  provided them, at least, one transcheck per pay

         22  period without fee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Oh, per pay

         24  period, okay.

         25                 MR. IVY:  Right, every two weeks they
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          2  had one transcheck without fee.  But they could use

          3  10, 20, 30 transchecks, if they like.  They are

          4  often very useful after you have taken out $20

          5  increments and you have some left over money on your

          6  card, you can request a transcheck for the $7.51 and

          7  so forth to clear out the card.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, now then I

          9  can conceivably on pay day, I don't have to go

         10  anywhere because my debit card has now automatically

         11  been paid.  Call Money Net, walk into my boss and

         12  say, give me a transcheck for the full, for my full

         13  pay.

         14                 MR. IVY:  Actually what they do is

         15  they give you a transcheck, you call up Money

         16  Network, your boss is not involved. It is a

         17  transaction between the holder of the card and Money

         18  Network.  We just gave the transchecks to the

         19  providers, gave them extra checks so that the kids

         20  would have a place to go to get them conveniently.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So who has the

         22  physical check, if the provider doesn't have it?

         23                 MR. IVY:  If the provider doesn't

         24  have any, and the kid has used his one card, then he

         25  can call up Money Network, or he can call DYCD and
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          2  we will have some sent over.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Oh, wait, wait,

          4  wait.  So when an employee gets their debit card at

          5  the beginning of the summer, they are given blank

          6  transchecks with those cards?

          7                 MR. IVY:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  All right, so

          9  they should theoretically have one for every pay

         10  period, and they call Money Net, and then they fill

         11  out their own check.

         12                 MR. IVY:  You actually don't fill

         13  anything out.  You just right the authorization code

         14  on the check.  Everything is encoded electronically,

         15  nothing is written on the check.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  You know, I have

         17  to tell you, I am not technologically illiterate,

         18  and you guys are losing me. You know, I am guessing

         19  by the buzz in the crowd that you have lost them

         20  too.  All right, I mean, if I am going to walk into

         21  Immigrant Savings Bank with a transcheck, it has got

         22  to be something tangible.

         23                 MR. IVY:  It is, it is a voucher.

         24  And you can, it is a voucher that says Money Network

         25  will honor this for a particular amount of money. It
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          2  is only good - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And somebody

          4  fills that voucher out, right, with an amount and an

          5  authorization code, right?

          6                 MR. IVY:  Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And who is that,

          8  the person, the employee.

          9                 MR. IVY:  The employee fills out the

         10  authorization code they receive.  They can write on

         11  the face of it the amount that the check is worth,

         12  it is not necessary, but they can.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  All right.  But

         14  then we are going to take your voucher to my bank,

         15  does my bank have the vagus idea of what is going on

         16  here?

         17                 MR. IVY:  Absolutely.  They have a

         18  check from Money Network.  Once they run - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  They have a

         20  voucher from Money Network.

         21                 MR. IVY:  It is a check.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  It's a check,

         23  all right, it's a voucher, it's a check, it's a

         24  square piece of paper.

         25                 MR. IVY:  It is a square piece of
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          2  paper that says,- -  Do we have an example of it?

          3  Okay.  They take it to the bank, the bank knows

          4  exactly what it is.  They punch in the numbers on

          5  the bottom of the transcheck, the amount that it is

          6  good for, along with the authorization code appears

          7  for them.  Once it all checks out, the money is

          8  there, transferred.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  My bank is

         10  Immigrant.  I assume that is not one of your two

         11  banks that you worked out your deal with.  Is

         12  Immigrant going to charge me for this device?

         13                 MR. IVY:  No, they will not.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  They are just

         15  going to take, they are going to take this voucher,

         16  it's worth, you know, $212.36, and they are going to

         17  take it like it was a City paycheck and deposit it

         18  in my checking account, or my savings account.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Unless they

         20  normally charge you for other checks, no, they will

         21  not charge you.  But this is only one of several

         22  ways that a young person is going to access their

         23  money.

         24                 Like we mentioned, many will use an

         25  ATM machine at one of the identified banks where
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          2  there are no fees.  Others will purchase something

          3  at the store, and others will transfer it, you can

          4  directly transfer it to your personal bank account

          5  without having to go through this paper process,

          6  which could, in fact, be easier.

          7                 We should say that about a third of

          8  the people who participated this summer used the

          9  transchecks.  So it wasn't confusing to them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  All right, maybe

         11  the explanation was the only confusing part.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Well it is

         13  something that you sort of have to see, I have to

         14  admit that.  Maybe we can get you a copy of it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  All right.  But

         16  during the course of the summer, particularly at the

         17  beginning of the summer, you know, we got some

         18  complaints that it was costing young people money to

         19  cash their paycheck.  Did you get similar

         20  complaints, and how did you address that?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  We did get

         22  similar complaints, and as with anything new, we

         23  think that training is the most important thing that

         24  we can do. Unfortunately, many of the young people

         25  were not familiar with, I mean, I know for example I
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          2  bank at Chase.  If I go to CitiBank, I am going to

          3  get hit with a lot of fees. So I make a concerted

          4  effort whenever I can to go to my main branch.

          5  These are things that are learned things that if you

          6  don't have, if you don't come from a family where

          7  banking is part of your culture and part of what you

          8  do, these are things that you have to be trained on.

          9                 And we know that we did a substantial

         10  amount of training, perhaps we did not do as much

         11  training as we could have, but we certainly are very

         12  focused on what we will do next year. That is one of

         13  the things that, you know, as we look ahead that we

         14  will focus on, is really how to make sure that every

         15  young person knows how to access their money without

         16  incurring fees.

         17                 We were able to work with the payroll

         18  vendors to reverse those fees.  Some of the young

         19  people, you know, were surprised because they were

         20  trying to access more money than they had in their

         21  accounts.  So instead of asking for $60, they were

         22  asking for $6,000.  So they got hit with fees, you

         23  know, so had to sort of learn that the hard way.

         24  And maybe were surprised that, you know, we were

         25  organized in a way that prevented that type of
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          2  fraud.

          3                 Again, we will do everything that we

          4  can, and again, start much earlier working with the

          5  contractors to make sure that they fully understand

          6  the implications of using the debit card.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I think I get

          8  it.  And I certainly do think that there is a

          9  valuable component to making sure that the young

         10  people who come through the program gain a

         11  familiarity with financial devices.  I just wanted

         12  to be absolutely sure that somebody was not getting

         13  a leg up on everybody to make a fee on every check

         14  that was being issued, or every payment that was

         15  being made to an SYEP job holder.  Because at the

         16  beginning of the summer that was, you know, that was

         17  the cry.  You know, I am getting paid this amount of

         18  money, and it is costing me money.  And I guess with

         19  everything new there is a learning curve, and I

         20  guess we need to make sure coming into this summer

         21  that everybody understands, you know, before they

         22  make the first mistake, how they access their money

         23  without cost.

         24                 We have been joined by Council Member

         25  Felder, Simcha Felder.  Before I take this into
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          2  other areas and start asking other questions, do

          3  either of my colleagues have questions they want to

          4  address on this or any other topic?

          5                 Council Member Gallagher.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much for your

          8  testimony.  Concerning this, you said Commerce Bank

          9  and Washington Mutual.  I don't think Washington

         10  Mutual charges a fee for any debit card use.  Is

         11  that correct?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  That is

         13  right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  So they

         15  would not have charged a fee anyway.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  And Signature

         17  Bank.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  So you

         19  have Commerce Bank and you have Washington Mutual.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  And

         21  Signature.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I'm sorry?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  And

         24  Signature.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And
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          2  Signature.  How did you get those three financial

          3  institutions involved in making sure that there no

          4  payment?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  We, obviously

          6  are, like the Council member indicated, interested

          7  in making sure that young people are getting the

          8  best deal.  And so we had started talking, making

          9  the offer, obviously, available to any bank in New

         10  York City, but those were the three banks and

         11  institutions that were willing to negotiate this

         12  with us.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  So did you

         14  reach out directly to them, did you send them a

         15  letter?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Oh,

         17  absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  So to

         19  date, after the program has been, and you are

         20  preparing for next year, do you have somebody, or a

         21  letter that is going out to other financial

         22  institutions, and do you have somebody assigned who

         23  is going to be reaching out to those financial

         24  institutions, like Chase, and CitiBank, and

         25  Citicorp, and everybody else?  It just seems, I
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          2  don't know, unusual to me that only maybe two or

          3  three chose the option.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  I think with

          5  more time, and more, and also obviously the lessons

          6  learned from this past summer, we absolutely should

          7  do everything that we can to make sure we have more

          8  institutions who are willing to waive their fees.

          9  We think it is, obviously, a great opportunity to

         10  have some 34,000 young people introduced to banking,

         11  and introduced to institutions at an early age to

         12  begin saving, to begin thinking about buying a car,

         13  and buying a home.  And so, I think it should, you

         14  know, it would make sense from a business point of

         15  view.  And so, absolutely, we will be doing that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And I

         17  think it is important for them to learn the lessons,

         18  and I guess, unfortunately, they are learning a

         19  harsh lesson too.  That if they decided to take $20

         20  per time, and they did it for four times, and they

         21  do not have a Commerce Bank, a Signature, or a

         22  Washington Mutual in their community, and they are

         23  going into one of the local stores where there is an

         24  ATM or another bank or another financial

         25  institution, it is going to cost them maybe up to
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          2  eight dollars to access the money that is in their

          3  account.

          4                 So I would hope and expect that DYCD

          5  would do all that they can to reach out to each and

          6  everyone of the financial institutions, and beyond

          7  just maybe a letter, but a personal phone call.

          8  Many of these institutions do a lot of work with the

          9  City of New York, and I think it would be a good

         10  thing for them to try to help a young child's first

         11  assets.  And we want them to save for a car, but we

         12  don't want that eight dollars going out to the

         13  financial institutions, we want it in their pockets,

         14  spending it in their community.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, let's get

         17  back to the usual meat and potato questions.  How

         18  many youth participated in the 2004 SYEP?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  We had 33,700

         20  or so people.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And could you

         22  break that down in terms of job placement between

         23  community- based organizations, NYCHA, and DOE?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  I can, but it

         25  will take me a little while to find it at this
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          2  point.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Maybe someone

          4  can work on that while I give you the next essay

          5  question.

          6                 I guess the next question is the

          7  funding stream, could you tell us what the

          8  allocation was in 2004 by the various funding

          9  sources, we at TANF Block Grants, State/City Tax

         10  Levy money.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Yes, NYCHA

         12  was 1,200 and the Department of Education was $330.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And therefore I

         14  assume the balance was CBOs?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  Did you

         17  find next one  -

         18                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  The breakdown

         19  of fundings. Yes.  We had nine million and forty-

         20  seven from the State.  We had in terms of City Tax

         21  Levy, seventeen million, six hundred and thirty.  We

         22  had WIA seven million, five hundred and forty.  We

         23  claimed two million Public Assistance through HRA

         24  and TANF, we had three hundred and eleven thousand

         25  from HRA.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  The three

          3  hundred and eleven from HRA, is that CSBG money or

          4  something different?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  No, it is

          6  something different.  Chris, can you come up?

          7                 MR. CARUS:  Good morning, my name is

          8  Chris Carus. I am the Budget Director at DYCD.  We

          9  had an intercity agreement with the Human Resources

         10  Administration where they found jobs for some of the

         11  participants in their Domestic Violence Prevention

         12  Programs.  This is the program that we operate with

         13  them every year.  They did the job placements and

         14  transferred the funds to us, and we did the payroll

         15  and the associated costs.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  What was the

         17  total spending on SYEP?  So it was 36.5 million?

         18  Okay.

         19                 I guess this is the tough question,

         20  because it implies that you have a crystal ball that

         21  we don't have, and maybe have some inside info.  Do

         22  you have any notion of how many youth you are

         23  planning on serving in the 2005 SYEP?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  I am always

         25  optimistic that we will have a strong a program next
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          2  summer, and that we will continue to serve the

          3  numbers that we have served in the past.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  How about the

          5  distant past, 2002 sound good?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  And whatever

          7  I have, I will spend, and I will spend on a quality

          8  program.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I have no doubt

         10  about that. You didn't return any of that 36.5

         11  million, right?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  No, we

         13  didn't, and we have no intention of it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  You know, I know

         15  that we hear over here on this side of the building,

         16  and not that anyone has put anything in writing, but

         17  that Commissioners have been called in and told to

         18  make cuts.  Obviously, this is a program where the

         19  money has been spent already.  Have you been given

         20  any indication that any of these cuts will effect

         21  your ability in the next budget to run an SYEP?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  As you know,

         23  we are still in discussions with the Administration,

         24  the various parts of the Administration, including

         25  OMB, and those cuts are not public at this time, nor
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          2  do we know whether we will be faced, unfortunately,

          3  with an economic downturn that might suggest that we

          4  have to make more cuts.  So at this point, I rather

          5  not discuss that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And I can tell

          7  OMB the cuts, the fact that there are cuts may be a

          8  little bit more public than they would like them to

          9  be.  But what they are is certainly a mystery to us,

         10  at this point.  And I guess, therefore, it follows

         11  that you have not been told what the Preliminary

         12  Budget will hold for the Summer Youth Employment

         13  Program.

         14                 That is a head shake no, for the

         15  record.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  You know they

         18  haven't even video this meeting here today.  So for

         19  the record that was a no. The question is almost

         20  rhetorical as to how you are able to plan for a

         21  program that you won't know how much, what the size

         22  of it will be until June.  But I am not going to

         23  make you answer that.

         24                 There is a great deal of optimist in

         25  that there will be an increase in the minimum wage
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          2  passed by the State.  Have you contemplated how that

          3  will effect the Summer Job Program?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Barring no

          5  increase in funding, we know that an increase in the

          6  minimum wage means that perhaps more young people

          7  will not be able to work next summer.  I mean, I

          8  think administratively we have been as aggressive as

          9  possible to make sure that the savings that we

         10  gleaned really go back into the program in terms of

         11  additional slots.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Do you have any

         13  indication at all, at this point, this early stage

         14  as to what the State is planning, talking about,

         15  thinking about for next summer?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  No, but those

         17  discussions are already beginning, and is working

         18  with the Albany Legislators to make sure that we go

         19  into next year, you know, with a better sense of

         20  what the budget will be.  I think, this last year,

         21  we were, as you know, received six million dollars

         22  less than we had in previous years, and you know,

         23  had to adjust the program accordingly.  We are

         24  hoping that next year we won't have to face that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I suppose it
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          2  would be an obvious question and answer, if I said

          3  to you, would it be helpful to DYCD to its

          4  providers, if you knew, say in March what the budget

          5  was going to be as opposed to the end of June, in

          6  terms of operating a program?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  The more - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  It is okay, you

          9  can say yes, you know.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  The more lead

         11  time that we have, the better able we are able to

         12  plan for a program.  But you know it doesn't

         13  preclude from running a good program, even when we

         14  find out at a late date.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Councilman, do

         16  you have any, Councilman Felder, do you have any

         17  questions?  Very quiet this morning.

         18                 Commissioner, apropos of your last

         19  remark, I would say it certainly does not in any way

         20  inhibit you from running a quality program, because

         21  you have and you do.  I just would marvel at how

         22  good a program you would be able to run if you

         23  didn't have to change the program as you did this

         24  year at the last week of June, when our budget, in

         25  my view, shafted the children in the City of New
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          2  York at the last moment, and you had to really

          3  reinvent and uninvent parts of your program.  And I

          4  think you did a magnificent job considering all of

          5  that.

          6                 Before I, I see Councilman Martinez

          7  has joined us. So I am going to ask one off topic

          8  question that is very much in the mind of many of

          9  us, before I set you free.  And it is about OST.

         10  Are we getting an RFP on OST any time in the near

         11  future, or can Michelle Yanche go into the hospital

         12  and have her baby with a free mind?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  No, we are

         14  going to have a quality system for Michelle Yanche's

         15  two children to participate in, and many other

         16  children in the City of New York.  We are working

         17  vigorously to get an RFP out the door.  You will be

         18  briefed on the details of that RFP prior to the

         19  release of the RFP.  And that is basically it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  We keep on

         21  hearing soon, and I have been hearing soon since

         22  March.  Do you have any time table that you can

         23  share with us at this point?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Well as you

         25  know we don't release to the public the OST or other
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          2  RFP dates, for obvious reasons.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I am not asking

          4  for a date, I am asking for a ballpark projection.

          5  Because as you know, I think the Council and the

          6  Administration have a serious difference of opinion

          7  as to whether or not the budget currently,

          8  adequately funds the OST RFP as we last heard it.

          9  And if it is going to happen in the next two weeks,

         10  and it is going to take effect in the next budget

         11  cycle, well then I guess the budgetary debate begins

         12  early on that issue.

         13                 You know, I am just kind of curious

         14  as to whether or not we are going to be hearing

         15  something substantive before January 1st, after

         16  January 1st, or some time in the spring.  Can you

         17  narrow it down, you know, within that ballpark?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Very soon.  I

         19  mean, if you have any doubt about the movement,

         20  there was something in the City Record that released

         21  our protocol for rating the RFPs and looking,

         22  reviewing the RFPs.  And so, you know, that should

         23  be an indication that we are moving ahead.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So I should be

         25  expecting a phone call from your office for a
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          2  briefing on the OST RFP very, very soon?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Wait by the

          4  phone.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Wait by the

          6  phone.  All right, I see Councilman Felder has

          7  stopped meditating and now has a question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I didn't stop

          9  meditating, but I can do both at the same time,

         10  right now.

         11                 First of all, I wanted to echo how

         12  much we appreciated the miraculous efforts on behalf

         13  of our kids this past summer both by you and as well

         14  as the Chair of Committee during very, very

         15  difficult times.  You know, at the end of the day,

         16  you were able to make lemonade out of a lemon.

         17                 I just would like to make two

         18  requests.  One is to, I didn't have the opportunity

         19  to see the RFP last year, for, you know the Summer

         20  Youth Programs.  And I don't know whether I know

         21  that you send it to the Chair.  I am not sure how I

         22  am supposed to get it.  I would like to get a copy

         23  of the RFPs when they are issued.  Is that okay?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  We can have

         25  you get a copy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I would also

          3  like a copy of that debit card with money in it, if

          4  you can get.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  That might be

          6  wrong.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  What?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  That might be

          9  wrong.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  You are not

         11  allowed, less than $50, all right.

         12                 And finally I want to ask the Chair,

         13  you know this is my pet peeve about the Neighborhood

         14  Advisory Boards.  I have no question for the

         15  Commissioner, I am just asking, if possible at some

         16  point, if we can have an oversight hearing about the

         17  way that the Neighborhood Advisory Boards work or

         18  don't work well, I would appreciate it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well we did have

         20  one, and if you would discuss having another, I am

         21  certainly open to that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  You are welcome.

         24    We have been joined by Council Member Gerson, as

         25  well, and Council Member Martinez has a question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.  I want to apologize to you and the

          4  Commissioner for my lateness.

          5                 I do, however, have a question

          6  concerning summer youth, and some of the things that

          7  happened last summer.  I also want to congratulate

          8  the Commissioner for doing all she did with all the

          9  restraints and the issues that came up last year.

         10                 However, one of the concerns that I

         11  have, for example, communities like mine that have

         12  such a large number of young people, and the

         13  dramatic reduction in terms of slots for Summer

         14  Youth Employment was tremendous.  And I remember

         15  speaking with your office, and at one point,

         16  yourself, about some sort of justification of how

         17  did we get such a dramatic reduction in numbers of

         18  summer youth, particularly in Northern Manhattan.

         19  And one of the things that came up was that through

         20  NYCHA, the New York City Housing Authority, they

         21  were also going to be employing some of our youth.

         22  However, some of the information that I got from my

         23  local CBOs is that yes, you may have NYCHA employing

         24  summer youth, but not necessarily from that

         25  particular community as directly and sort of like
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          2  community oriented job placement in NYCHA.

          3                 I wanted to know do you have a

          4  breakdown of the zip codes, for example, at the

          5  different NYCHA developments where Summer Youth

          6  Employment took place, like where these kids came

          7  from, do you have it in that breakdown?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  We have an

          9  overall zip code breakdown so that we could, for

         10  example, you could tell us the zip codes that you

         11  are concerned about, and we could provide you with

         12  the numbers of young people by zip code who worked

         13  in your district.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  At the

         15  NYCHA developments, right?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Well it is

         17  not by contractor as much as these were the kids who

         18  are in that zip code who worked.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  In other

         20  words, I was told that, for example, let's say had

         21  three in my zip code, one of the zip codes with a

         22  high number of population of young people.  Let's

         23  say I had 3,000 jobs last year, hypothetically,

         24  similar to what happened last year, we only had

         25  1,000.  Do you know what I mean? And some of the
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          2  justification that I got for that was that now since

          3  there is more everybody, a collaborative effort is

          4  happening with the different City agencies that do

          5  work with you.  And NYCHA was one of the example

          6  used, and it still didn't justify or explain how

          7  many kids from my area that were not employed by the

          8  CBO that traditionally employ in Northern Manhattan,

          9  were now being employed by NYCHA.

         10                 So what I want to know is, where did

         11  my kids go?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  We can, I

         13  mean, if you like we can look specifically at where

         14  NYCHA kids worked.  I think it is important though

         15  that the back drop of what happened this past, we

         16  had less kids working overall in the City of New

         17  York.  And so that is another factor that, I mean

         18  overall we had a decline in the number of kids.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  No, I

         20  understand that.  We all understand that there was a

         21  dramatic reduction.  But we also have to look at

         22  communities with the needs and the population.

         23  Because it is, I think, that it is not equitable

         24  distribution when you had the same amount let's say

         25  in Staten Island than what you have in Northern
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          2  Manhattan.

          3                 An example, because of the population

          4  is not the same, you have more kids in certain areas

          5  and less jobs.  You have less kids in other areas,

          6  and the same amount of jobs.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  I mean the

          8  formula did take into consideration, obviously,

          9  youth population is a key issue. Low- income New

         10  Yorkers is a second, and then as a third, as an

         11  incentive, as you know, we designated certain zip

         12  codes as being ones where there was high

         13  unemployment.  Because precisely what you are

         14  saying, is that many communities that have been hard

         15  hit by unemployment, by economic downturn, should be

         16  those that, you know, we want to target some of our

         17  resources.

         18                 We know that for the most part that

         19  targeting works because about 60 percent of the kids

         20  that participated were, met that criteria.  We can

         21  look more specifically about the slots in your

         22  community, and probably get back to you and have a

         23  more separate meeting on how it worked in Upper

         24  Manhattan, and also how the NYCHA slots

         25  participated, as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

          3  Commissioner. And you know, I am for placing kids

          4  at, you know, the more the merrier.  But we also

          5  have to look at how equitable we are distributing

          6  these slots.  Because if we look at what is

          7  happening, you know, particularly in Northern

          8  Manhattan where there is a high need, both

          9  unemployment, poverty, all the categories that you

         10  just mentioned, you will find that we rank on the

         11  top, in terms of needs.  And yet, not only are we

         12  losing slots, we have more kids every year, less

         13  jobs available, and we are going to have NYCHA

         14  involved in the process, you know, let's make sure

         15  that they are part of that formula that is going to

         16  be providing the jobs and the services to those

         17  areas with the high needs.

         18                 And yes, I am definitely interested,

         19  and I will follow- up in looking at how it worked in

         20  Northern Manhattan last year.  Because really there

         21  was, we had a lot of kids without work last year in

         22  Northern Manhattan.

         23                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  You know,

         25  Council member, I know that you and several of our
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          2  colleagues had asked similar questions and we did

          3  get some answers from DYCD with some data that I

          4  hope we have shared with you.  I am not sure if we

          5  did.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Your

          7  office?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Council, the

          9  Committee Council.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  I don't

         11  believe we have gotten that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, we will

         13  make sure you get another copy of it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Oh, so we

         15  have - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  It is not quite

         17  as detailed as NYCHA and zip code, but it does

         18  contain jobs by zip codes throughout the City as a

         19  result of some questions I think you had asked, and

         20  I think Council Member Recchia had asked.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Got it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thanks, I

         24  did not know we had that already.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Some of it, some
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          2  of it, so we will get that to you.

          3                 See the problem with other people

          4  asking questions is that I remember the ones I

          5  haven't asked.  You detailed the 36.5 million that

          6  was spent this year.  Do you have any reason to

          7  believe that any of those funding streams are going

          8  to change significantly, are the WIA funds going to

          9  change, is there any reason to believe the HRA TANF

         10  funds won't be there?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Yes,

         12  Councilman, as you probably know the WIA, the WIA

         13  legislation is scheduled to be reauthorized this

         14  year by Congress.  So at this point we would not

         15  have specific information as to whether the funding

         16  levels will be the same as they have been in years

         17  past.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And do you know

         19  when that is supposed to happen?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Well it was

         21  supposed to happen last spring.  The latest word

         22  that we are hearing is that it will be one of the

         23  earlier pieces of business that Congress takes up

         24  when the new session starts.  So we are hopeful that

         25  maybe by March or April we will know more about the
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          2  WIA levels of funding that we will be getting.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And do you have

          4  any reason to believe that they will be better?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Actually we

          6  have no reason to think there is going to be a major

          7  change one way or the other, but that is, you know,

          8  I can't really say more than that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  Just that

         10  I don't know if you have had an opportunity to look

         11  at Resolution 653- A, but in effect, you know, what

         12  it does, is it calls for a return to the levels of

         13  2002.  And whether or not that is interpreted as

         14  actual dollars, or actual jobs is, I guess,

         15  something we can discuss.  And clearly, as I said in

         16  my opening remarks, you have done more with less.

         17                 We appear to be 9,300 jobs off of the

         18  2002 level. Factoring out minimum wage legislation

         19  for a moment, which I think would effect the math,

         20  would I be correct in assuming that to bring the job

         21  level up, back up to 43,000, which was the 2002

         22  level, just that the mathematics is simply, you

         23  know, 9,300 jobs to 33,700, you know, compared to

         24  36.5 million that it cost to provide 33,700.  Is

         25  there, I mean, is the cost per job going to be
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          2  constant, if I am looking to increase the number of

          3  young people employed by 9,300, or am I missing

          4  something in the math?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Yes, but

          6  isn't there a differential between the WIA slots and

          7  the Tax Levy slots?  So, I mean, the WIA slots are

          8  cheaper.  If you have questions about the

          9  calculation, feel free to work with us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Then I would ask

         11  this question, and I don't imagine you will be able

         12  to give me the answer right here and now, but I

         13  would appreciate it as quickly as possible. Assuming

         14  that the WIA funding stays in place, approximately

         15  as is, what would it cost to bring the job level

         16  back up to 43,000 young people as oppose to what it

         17  cost us last summer?  How do we get to that figure,

         18  and then if you would then factor in the pending

         19  minimum wage legislation that is likely to pass this

         20  year in Albany, and give me those numbers again,

         21  massage the second time? We would appreciate that, I

         22  think that would be very helpful. Thank you.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  You are

         24  welcome.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Councilman
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          2  Gerson, do you have any questions you would like to

          3  ask?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes, just one

          5  question, Mr. Chair.  Unfortunately, I was not able

          6  to join you previously, but as the Commissioner

          7  knows we have discussed this on many occasions. I

          8  just want to join my colleagues in expressing a

          9  recognition to you on your stellar efforts in this

         10  area, as well as in many other areas.

         11                 And Mr. Chair, thank you for your

         12  constant trenchant leadership in the Summer Youth

         13  Program, really, you have made a major difference to

         14  the lives of countless young people.

         15                 Just one question, if you covered it

         16  earlier, let me know, and I will follow up.  But on

         17  the process of applications by interested

         18  organizations, last year, as we had discussed, there

         19  were, or last go around I should say, there were

         20  some issues involving organizations which had

         21  participated over many years, and with a good track

         22  record by all accounts, but were turned down because

         23  of problems with their applications, or because

         24  their applications, the paperwork did not measure up

         25  to applications, you know, submitted by others in
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          2  the competitive process according to the way you

          3  evaluated the applications.  And what we found upon

          4  further investigation is that several of these

          5  organizations just kind of assumed that because they

          6  had been in the program for so many years, and had a

          7  track record in the field, they just kind of

          8  submitted a down and dirty quick performer

          9  recommendation and did not take the time that they

         10  should have.

         11                 My question to you is, for the next

         12  go around, one is, are you changing the process in

         13  any way which takes account of an infield track

         14  record beyond the submitted applications?  And two,

         15  what steps are we undertaking to notify

         16  organizations to make sure that they are aware of

         17  the process and how significant their writing really

         18  is?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  I have to say

         20  that the hardest part of my job is having to say,

         21  no, and make funding decisions that adversely effect

         22  quality programs.  I wish that we had the funding to

         23  fund every good program in New York City.

         24                 As you know, over the last 10 years,

         25  probably the number of non- profits has tripled in
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          2  New York City, and I think that is a good thing, I

          3  think that is healthy for New York City because it

          4  means that we have a very sophisticated non- profit

          5  sector and safety net for our citizens.

          6                 At the same time, as you know, we

          7  have seen a shrinking of these resources, and it has

          8  meant that unfortunately, we have to say no to good

          9  programs.  And I know there is a disconnect there,

         10  because the programs, often they will say, well, but

         11  Jeanne you have come to see my program.  Yes, I

         12  have, and you have seen the good work that we have

         13  done, and you are familiar with us.  And all of

         14  those things are absolutely true.  But

         15  unfortunately, it boils down to somebody got a 90

         16  and somebody got an 89, and we have to go with 90.

         17                 As you know, one thing that we have

         18  been very committed to is really having a

         19  transparent process, and having one that really has

         20  regular competition, has regular solicitation, so

         21  that everybody really knows what the rules of the

         22  game are and can participate fully.  But at the end

         23  of the day, unfortunately, we will not have enough

         24  money to fund all the good programs that are out

         25  there, particularly when it comes to those programs,
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          2  and you represent Manhattan, you represent

          3  Manhattan, those programs that want to do business

          4  in Manhattan, where we have a strong tradition of

          5  good programs.

          6                 Those programs that want to do

          7  business in communities where there are less, for

          8  example, less settlement houses, less non- profits.

          9  For example, in Queens, particularly in the after-

         10  school arena, you don't see as many agencies.  But

         11  you know, in the community that I grew up on the

         12  Lower East Side you have all of the strong tradition

         13  of settlement houses. Unfortunately, many of them

         14  are competing against themselves in Manhattan where

         15  the number of youth, taking Washington Heights out

         16  of the equation for a second, but where the number

         17  of youth has really diminished.

         18                 We will continue to do everything

         19  that we can to make it a transparent process.  We

         20  have put a lot of the things on the web,

         21  particularly for CBOs so that they can, every time

         22  an RFP is released they can download it directly,

         23  they can get information about the procurement

         24  process.  We have been visible in the community

         25  participating in lots and lots forum with some of
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          2  your colleagues and with lots of external agencies

          3  to really explain how the process works.  We will

          4  continue to do that, and we will continue to offer

          5  capacity building, which is an important piece for

          6  many of your small providers.  But it will remain,

          7  unfortunately, very competitive.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just if we

          9  wanted to hold like a community forum with

         10  potentially interested CBOs to go over the process,

         11  would you have someone from the Department who can

         12  come down?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right, I

         15  will follow- up with you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair,

         16  very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  It is my

         18  understanding that the awards to the last RFP were

         19  for how many years?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  It is a

         21  three- year contract. So it probably, you know, a

         22  year or so away from having something like that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I meant, in

         24  general though, because this is not unique, this

         25  experience is not unique with this solicitation.  It
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          2  is across the board, whether it is the Immigration

          3  RFP that we just released the results for, or any

          4  other RFP, unfortunately, we are continuing to have

          5  to say no.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I was

          7  thinking in those terms, because as we have

          8  discussed there might be some overlap of some, and

          9  opportunities for programs rejected from last year's

         10  go around to participate in these other RFPs, which

         11  you just mentioned.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  I mean the

         13  other thing that we have to also remember is that

         14  procurement laws really make us look at what is on

         15  the four corners of the page, so- to- speak.  We

         16  cannot go out and visit every program, and make our

         17  assessments that way.  So we really have to depend

         18  on what is written.

         19                 And sometimes programs take it for

         20  granted, oh, she knows my program, she has been out

         21  to visit.  And, unfortunately, don't spend as much

         22  time in really developing the programmatic sections

         23  and outlining the experience, because they assume

         24  that the agency is familiar with their program.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Commissioner,
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          2  thank you very much.  Again, I want to commend you

          3  and DYCD for doing an excellent job on this.  I know

          4  that when we talk about increasing funding that I

          5  know that is something you very much would like to

          6  see.  I hope that when you get a private moment with

          7  the Mayor, and the folks at OMB, as they go into the

          8  budget process this year, I hope you will urge them,

          9  as I did in my opening statement that maybe this

         10  year we can stop playing the dance, and just go

         11  right to it. It will allow to plan for something

         12  that we all know, this Council will not leave lying

         13  dead on the floor, and that is summer jobs for our

         14  kids.  And perhaps, that we can take a look at the

         15  fact that we all came into office in 2002, there

         16  were 43,000 young people working in this City, and

         17  whatever it takes, whatever we have to do to get

         18  43,000 young people back working is our minimum

         19  obligation in this cycle.  And let's try and do it

         20  the right way this time, so that everyone can plan

         21  for it.

         22                 And again, I thank you for your help

         23  in getting us to where we are now, and to where we

         24  hope to go.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MULLGRAV:  Thank you,
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          2  Happy Holiday.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  All right, I

          4  understand that Karen McGuinness needs to leave.

          5  So, Karen, if you would come up and be our next

          6  speaker.

          7                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  Hello.  Okay, I am

          8  here today from JP Morgan Chase.  This past summer

          9  we participated in the DYCD SYEP program, and of

         10  course, I am totally grateful to DYCD for bringing

         11  this program to us, allowing us to have these kids

         12  come in and work throughout the five boroughs this

         13  past summer.

         14                 Now we were hit with a little bit of,

         15  there were some constraints in making this program

         16  successful.  I would say my first issue I would take

         17  with just getting the applications out to the kids.

         18  I understand that there are constraints that maybe

         19  we cannot overcome this year, surrounding where we

         20  are getting funding from for the students.  But I

         21  know to some extent, we know that we are going to

         22  have a certain amount of dollars to have these kids,

         23  at least, fill out application forms.

         24                 Just to give you a little bit of my

         25  experience this past summer, I was working with the

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  non- profits in the Bronx, Brooklyn, Queens,

          3  Manhattan, and Staten Island.  We were looking to

          4  take in students to work throughout our branch

          5  networks in all of the boroughs.  Most of the non-

          6  profits that we deal with do serve predominantly

          7  low- to moderate- income families and children.

          8                 We started the program, or this

          9  year's program was to start on July 6.  As of July

         10  3rd, I did not have any names of the students that

         11  were coming into us.  In order to work with JP

         12  Morgan Chase you must have your fingerprints taken,

         13  you have to take a drug test in order to come in, so

         14  we were unable to get some of this stuff done.  The

         15  week before we were calling all around to different

         16  places, we were sending kids all over the City to go

         17  for free drug test so we could find out if we were

         18  going to take them in.  The program does focus on 14

         19  to 21- year- olds.  We were looking for the upper

         20  end of the spectrum, 16 and better, predominantly

         21  because we felt that the older the student, the

         22  better chance it would be for them to gain

         23  employment with JP Morgan Chase.

         24                 DYCD was working with us, they were

         25  trying to get us the names in, before we were
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          2  actually cut off.  If I didn't get those names by

          3  Friday, we were not going to have a program.  We had

          4  already sunk $15,000 into the program to take in 60

          5  students for the summer.  This year we intend to

          6  take in 110, and we need to have applications March

          7  or April at the very latest.  We need to know in May

          8  or early June, who is coming to us, what type of

          9  training we have to provide for them.

         10                 Just to give you some of the rundown

         11  over the summer, we brought in "Dress for Success"

         12  to talk to our students. We gave them gift

         13  certificates to purchase business attire for their

         14  jobs.  We gave them training in how to conduct

         15  themselves in business attire, in business settings.

         16    They did presentations, they did financial

         17  literacy.  We had a whole spectrum of programming

         18  set up for them.  We ran into issues again with

         19  payments, many of the students were coming in, I

         20  believe they had to wait two weeks before they got

         21  paid in the first place.

         22                 And then the debit cards that they

         23  had only worked with certain institutions, and they

         24  were charged for everything. So if you weren't

         25  taking out the money the day you were supposed to
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          2  take it out, I believe you are automatically charged

          3  $3 for that. And there is a full page of all of the

          4  debit charges they get for checking, for

          5  transferring, for trying to take out cash, if there

          6  is anything left over and it does not come to a full

          7  $20, they cannot take it out.  I believe they were

          8  given some kind of checks so that they can go to

          9  some institution to cash.  But if they did have an

         10  account with any institution, nobody will cash those

         11  checks for you.  You must have an account some place

         12  to deposit those checks, or enough funds in those

         13  accounts to cash again.

         14                 So we had issues with students.  I,

         15  myself, had to lend my intern $100 for the week so

         16  that he could get through and get back and forth to

         17  work.  So there are certain issues, though I commend

         18  all of the CBOs that were involved.  DYCD was really

         19  trying their damnest to get us everything we needed.

         20                 They told us that they were looking

         21  to get more of the private industry in here.  So JP

         22  Morgan Chase is definitely involved and interested

         23  in employing our youth.  This past summer we had 11

         24  students take our teller exam, 10 of which passed

         25  them. Over the Christmas break from college, they
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          2  are coming back to do their training sessions, and

          3  will be employed by JP Morgan Chase for the upcoming

          4  2005.

          5                 Now we need some help getting some of

          6  these programs up and going before the very last

          7  minute, so that we can do some preparation on behalf

          8  of these kids.  These are jobs that will change

          9  their lives.  These are jobs, so they can come in,

         10  they are not making $5.15 an hour, they are making

         11  $8 or $9 an hour.  They are getting paid credits for

         12  college.  They are getting their benefits, their

         13  dental and medical benefits.  They can provide for

         14  their families, we are located in their communities,

         15  where they live.  In the Bronx we had 30 students

         16  last year, in the Bronx we have 29 branches, and

         17  three back offices.  We also had Manhattan,

         18  Brooklyn, Queens, and Staten Island, in each one we

         19  had between 7 and 10 students, which we had more

         20  than enough branches and back offices to put them

         21  in.  But there has to be more formalized training

         22  before we take them in.  We need to make sure they

         23  know how to dress, we need to make sure that they

         24  know how to speak, how to conduct themselves.

         25  Because I would like to increase the numbers both on
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          2  the front end as well as the end.  When we finish

          3  that program, when we take 20, 30, 40 kids to sit

          4  down and take a teller exam, we would like to give

          5  them employment.  We would like to help them pay for

          6  college.  We would like to help them, you know, be

          7  part of our corporation.  We would also like to be

          8  an example for other private corporations to become

          9  involved.  Other Citibanks, Washington Mutual,

         10  Commerce, anyone who wants to step up to give these

         11  kids an opportunity and a chance in the workforce,

         12  we are interested in being involved with.

         13                 So my testimony today was just to say

         14  how valuable I think this program is.  A question as

         15  to why we don't have a standing budget for a program

         16  as great as this, why we are rushing in June and

         17  July to figure out whether or not these kids have a

         18  job?

         19                 When it comes down to, I apologize

         20  for saying kids, students, we cannot make a

         21  difference in their life if we are calling them on

         22  July 4th to say, yes, you know you have a position

         23  for July 6th, and come down, and please put on a tie

         24  and a button up shirt.  They don't know what they

         25  are coming in for.  We want to interview them, we
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          2  want to make sure that these kids want a job in an

          3  institution like ours.

          4                 This year we had a larger number of

          5  14 and 15- year olds than we would like to have.

          6  Still a great experience for them on their resumes

          7  every year.  But it is not closer to the point, for

          8  example, if I had 17 and 18- year- old, if I catch

          9  them while they are seniors, juniors and seniors in

         10  high school, we have a program called SmartStar,

         11  they can apply for a program that pays for four

         12  years of college.  Gives them a paid internship at

         13  anywhere between eight and ten dollars an hour,

         14  depending on their experience and what they are

         15  asked to do.  And they will pay for books every

         16  year, so we are talking something to the tune of

         17  over $100,000 for schools such as NYU, Columbia,

         18  some of the SUNYs, some of the CUNYs, they are very

         19  good programs.

         20                 So these are things if they are a

         21  little bit too old, because I did have some that

         22  were already college freshmen, or they are a little

         23  too young, and we can't really do anything with

         24  them, yet.

         25                 Out of 60 students we had, we
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          2  finished with 54, some of which either had death in

          3  the family, issues that were, I guess, inexcusable

          4  to work for an institution such as ours.  But for

          5  the most part, every single one of those students

          6  did a phenomenal job. The branch managers, our vice-

          7  president, senior vice- presidents inquired as to

          8  how they can have them back next year.  And why

          9  don't we get them in a little bit sooner so we can

         10  do a little bit more on the presentation end with

         11  them before we throw them in, and people don't know

         12  who they are yet.  They are not well prepared for

         13  what they are going to do.  This is, in many cases,

         14  the first job they have ever had.  So we would like

         15  to have some more time on the front end to be

         16  involved with them.  Some more time so that we can

         17  increase the numbers that we are taking in, and

         18  therefore, giving them a better experience through

         19  the seven or eight weeks that they can stay with us.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well let me

         21  just, first of all, thank you for your participation

         22  in the program at JP Morgan Chase, and for your

         23  testimony today.  The Commissioner had indicated

         24  that 10 percent of the placements this year were in

         25  private institutions, so I assume that some of those
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          2  were at JP Morgan Chase.  And this is certainly one

          3  of the areas of the Summer Job Program that I know I

          4  would like to see built upon.  Because you know, we

          5  all believe that Summer Job Programs need to be more

          6  than a paycheck and a place to go.  And it certainly

          7  sounds like that is what you are building at JP

          8  Morgan Chase.

          9                 You heard the Commissioner mention

         10  that there were Focus Groups that had been formed to

         11  discuss how we make Summer 2004 better for Summer

         12  2005.  Has JP Morgan Chase been invited to

         13  participate in one of those?

         14                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  No.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So nobody from,

         16  okay, well that certainly is something I think we

         17  ought to remedy.  And did anyone stay behind from

         18  DYCD?  Oh, good.  So could we invite someone from JP

         19  Morgan Chase to one of those Focus Groups?  Well not

         20  at the moment.  Al, I guess, will make sure that the

         21  Commissioner knows about it.

         22                 Now the issues that you raised, which

         23  are particularly serious considering the program

         24  that you wanted to run, which does require some

         25  preclearance because of the nature of your
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          2  institution, and does offer some, you know, in

          3  advance training so that people don't come in cold,

          4  are also issue that to some lessor degree are

          5  affected by every single provider that is involved

          6  in the Summer Job Program.  And it is,

          7  unfortunately, endemic to a program that begins

          8  functionally on July 1st, which is the same day that

          9  the City budget begins on an annual basis, and is

         10  usually before the ink dries on the budget that is

         11  passed by the Council.

         12                 The resolution that is being

         13  considered by this Committee, although not for a

         14  vote today, basically addresses that question, and

         15  says that, how could you possibly plan a program,

         16  you know, such as the Summer Job Program in such,

         17  you know, haphazard fashion and expect it to succeed

         18  against all odds.

         19                 So the two recommendations that I

         20  would make are, first, that we make sure that JP

         21  Morgan Chase is in one of these Focus Groups, and

         22  that feedback is heard.

         23                 And second, that the Chairman of the

         24  Board of JP Morgan Chase may have a passing

         25  acquaintance with the Mayor, call the Mayor and
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          2  point out to him that he wouldn't run Bloomberg LP

          3  that way.  And that, because this is the only,

          4  single, item that I am aware of in the City budget

          5  that begins and ends as the budget is being passed.

          6  I mean the money is spent before the ink is dry that

          7  is being run almost from the beginning that perhaps

          8  we come to an agreement and understanding in

          9  February or March as to what that budget is going to

         10  be.  So that we can, in fact, start selecting kids,

         11  getting the application process going.  I think the

         12  Mayor is a good businessman and should understand

         13  that.  And perhaps it would take another good

         14  businessman like the CEO or the Chairman of Board of

         15  JP Morgan Chase to help us make that point, that

         16  would be my other piece of advice.

         17                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  I will work on that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Do any of my

         19  colleagues have any questions for Ms. McGuinness?

         20                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  I have one more

         21  thing to add.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Sure.

         23                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  I believe the bank

         24  that they are using currently is a bank based out in

         25  Tennessee.  And I know that they are using some
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          2  local banks with not a lot of presence for them to

          3  cash their checks.  I don't understand why they

          4  weren't reaching out to locally based Citibanks, or

          5  Chases, or banks such as these that would not charge

          6  them, would allow them to open accounts that they

          7  can maintain after this program.  We did, we open

          8  accounts for all 60 students and waived the fees,

          9  whether they were 14 or 18 or 20 years of age.  But

         10  there should be more of a, if we are pushing a

         11  financial literacy base to this program, if we are

         12  trying to teach these kids how to build wealth

         13  within themselves, their families, their

         14  communities, how can we give them a debit card that

         15  is not linked to anything that they are charged an

         16  arm and leg for, and they are only making 120 bucks

         17  a week.  I mean this should be based in a company

         18  where they have a decent amount of access to

         19  different ATMs.  If you are trying to push them to

         20  use the ATM not to be into branches, or any other

         21  type of financial institution to cash their check

         22  every week, which I think is a good way to teach

         23  them about their finances, you cannot nickel and

         24  dime them for everything.  You cannot charge for

         25  calling to find out their balance is.  Nobody else
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          2  does.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Yes, I actually

          4  had made myself a note to ask why JP Morgan Chase

          5  wasn't one of the banks.

          6                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  We were not

          7  approached.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And your point

          9  is extraordinarily well taken.  I mean, certainly,

         10  there was no indication, and I guess we didn't ask

         11  DYCD why virtual bank from outside of the City of

         12  New York was chosen for this purpose.  I always

         13  would prefer that we keep our money here in the City

         14  anyway. And certainly since you are participating in

         15  the program, it would make a great deal of sense to

         16  me, - -

         17                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  It wouldn't matter

         18  if it was JP Morgan Chase, it is what happens to the

         19  kids.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: - -  that JP

         21  Morgan Chase be involved more directly.  So I think

         22  your point is very well taken, and thank you very,

         23  very much for your testimony.

         24                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And your help.
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          2                 MS. MCGUINNESS:  Thank you for

          3  hearing me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, our next

          5  two witnesses are what we call our,- - Don't leave,

          6  Susan. - -  our, Susan, don't leave, our go- to

          7  people.  Whenever we come to issues like Summer

          8  Jobs, and they will call Michelle Yanche and Susan

          9  Stamler to come on up to be our next witnesses.

         10                 Now if there is anyone out there who

         11  wishes to testify, who has not filled out a form,

         12  please do so, that is the only way you can

         13  participate.

         14                 MS. YANCHE:  Good afternoon.  I am

         15  Michelle Yanche from Neighborhood Family Services

         16  Coalition, and this is my colleague, Susan Stamler

         17  from United Neighborhood Houses.  We are here to

         18  testify on, in support of Proposed Resolution 653-

         19  A.  Our colleagues who co- coordinated the Campaign

         20  for Summer Jobs are going to be giving more specific

         21  testimony on the sort of inner workings of the

         22  Summer Jobs Program, itself.  We just wanted to add

         23  a few thoughts about the bigger picture, about why

         24  the two,  sort of divided into two key points about

         25  this proposed resolution are really important to the
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          2  ongoing continuous improvement of the Summer Jobs

          3  Program, and the bigger picture of, what should be,

          4  New York State's proactive workforce development

          5  strategy.

          6                 The first point will be addressed by

          7  Susan, which really speaks to the importance of

          8  negotiating a funding amounts, and getting the,

          9  enabling all of the providers, including the for

         10  profits to have advance information about what will

         11  the program entail in the funding level.

         12                 MS. STAMLER:  Hi, good afternoon.  I

         13  am Susan Stamler of the United Neighborhood Houses.

         14  I just want to say how thrilled we were to see the

         15  resolution put forth by the Council on behalf of

         16  summer jobs.  Part of it is, you talked about the

         17  dancing, I think Michelle and I dance our way

         18  through the spring on summer jobs.

         19                 But I just want to talk about the

         20  need to depoliticize this program, both on the State

         21  and the City level. Every year we go through this

         22  dance where both levels of government talk about

         23  their commitment to young people and to summer jobs,

         24  yet, we are forced every year to go begging for the

         25  dollars we need.  We also saw what happened on the
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          2  State level where we lost $10 million, $6 million

          3  directly to New York City because of the adoption of

          4  the budget being so late.

          5                 And this year, dealing with an

          6  Administration who was really supportive of summer

          7  jobs, and I know the Commissioner is not here, but

          8  thank her for being up in Albany, and asking for

          9  funding for the program.  But then when it came down

         10  to the City back in our home turf, we had to make

         11  enough noise to make sure that the program was

         12  funded at a particular level.  And at some point we

         13  worry and wonder when the Administration puts forth

         14  a program model, and then asks others to go out and

         15  fund it, whether it is summer jobs, or the pending

         16  OST where there probably will not be enough money in

         17  the budget to fund that as well.

         18                 So I do want to thank you for putting

         19  forth this resolution.  We really need to see the

         20  number, the amount of money that will be available

         21  for young people.  And hopefully a commitment as the

         22  previous Administration one year had made, a

         23  commitment to fund a certain number of summer jobs.

         24  And we would like upwards of 40,000 young people to

         25  be promised to have a summer job for the next
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          2  summer.

          3                 We ask our contractors to do more,

          4  and the nice thing about this program, we have

          5  shifted some of the administrative responsibilities

          6  into the contractors' laps.  But at the same time we

          7  have not given them the amount of money, the number

          8  of young people that they need to plan a program,

          9  find work sites, and as the previous speaker had

         10  mentioned, you do have do have to make sure that the

         11  young person who is coming to work wants to be in

         12  that setting, whether it is in a bank or in a camp,

         13  they have to be the right kind of young person

         14  placed.

         15                 And we also asked our contractors to

         16  design training, many of these hours needed to be

         17  rejuggled because we didn't know until the very

         18  beginning of the program how many young people would

         19  be working.

         20                 So I do want to thank you so much for

         21  the efforts of the Council for saving the day each

         22  year, and being part of the dance with us.  But also

         23  hope that we can really depoliticize this and take

         24  this out of the arena of what are going to pay for

         25  our children, and actually determine early on what
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          2  is important, what are our priorities, and fund

          3  upwards of 40,000 summer jobs for our young people

          4  in Summer 2005.

          5                 MS. YANCHE:  In the resolution about

          6  moving back, at a minimum, to the Fiscal Year of the

          7  2002 levels.

          8                 In one of the two briefing documents

          9  there was a sort of three- piece sentence that

         10  showed the decline over the past three years in the

         11  number of young people that were able to work

         12  because of the lost funding, primarily from the

         13  State for this program.  And I really want to say

         14  how important I think it is for New York City's

         15  young people and for New York City and State to

         16  start reversing that trend, to move one step back to

         17  2002 level, and then move forward in an upward

         18  direction to make sure that more and more young

         19  people can be part of this program.

         20                 The reality is that New York, and

         21  really the rest of the country, is potentially

         22  facing 10 or 15 years down the road what could be a

         23  real workforce crisis.  We are, if you look at

         24  Census and Bureau of Labor statistic information,

         25  you see that there is a huge portion of our working
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          2  population right now that is scheduled to age out of

          3  the workforce in 10 to 15 years.  We need to be

          4  preparing our future workforce now.  The young

          5  people of our City need to be prepared to step into

          6  jobs, and we continuously hear from employers, here

          7  in New York City and throughout the State, that New

          8  York's only young people aren't as prepared as they

          9  need to be to replace that workforce.

         10                 We have a very small window of

         11  opportunity as a City and as a State to really start

         12  looking at the need to develop a proactive workforce

         13  development strategy.  This is obviously much bigger

         14  than the Summer Jobs Program, but the Summer Jobs

         15  Program is a very, very important part of that for

         16  three reasons:

         17                 One is it is important to young

         18  people, themselves. As Karen who testified earlier,

         19  rightfully pointed out this is often the first job

         20  of so many people.  People in this room, including

         21  myself, who was an SYEP kid.  This is the first

         22  opportunity that young people have to wear that

         23  suit, to go to work, report on time, and to get that

         24  paycheck.  It really is, sometimes what encourages a

         25  young person to think completely differently about
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          2  their own personal engagement to being a worker, and

          3  to maybe change the path that their life might take

          4  in terms of being employed.  But more importantly,

          5  in terms of what kind career they might end up at.

          6                 I thought that the testimony about

          7  what the young people have the opportunity to have

          8  at JP Morgan Chase, for example, which I know for a

          9  fact to be the case, for our young people that work

         10  in community organizations also, and all of the work

         11  sites, NYCHA, the Department of Education, it is an

         12  incredible resource for a teenager to have that

         13  mentoring support.  To have, I mean, in this case

         14  they have you know the opportunity, this year the

         15  opportunity to have a bank account for the first

         16  time to learn about financial literacy, and just the

         17  day in, day out learnings of actually having a job.

         18                 Secondly, I want to say this is

         19  important to New York City, because this is really

         20  making New York City's own resources work for

         21  itself.  Putting money in the pockets of young

         22  people that get invested in our communities, and

         23  most importantly this is providing a real workforce

         24  for us, even if it is seven, eight weeks of the

         25  summer, to New York City's community organizations

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  and other employers in the City.

          3                 And most importantly, just going back

          4  to my original point, this is good for New York

          5  State.  We have to make sure that we are doing

          6  everything possible to develop our young people from

          7  education to youth development, and to workforce

          8  development, to make sure that they can be the kind

          9  of workforce that can replace the current workforce

         10  that is going to be leaving in large numbers. We

         11  don't want to have to be importing people from other

         12  states and from outside of our borders, when we have

         13  young people right here that want to, that are going

         14  to live in New York City, that want to live in New

         15  York State, want to work here.

         16                 The Summer Jobs Program is one of the

         17  most important things that we can do.  It is like a

         18  win/win/win situation.  I would defy anyone to say

         19  anything that is not positive about this program.

         20  So, I really, strongly encourage the Council in

         21  support of Resolution 653- A to make sure that we

         22  really start turning the tide and increasing the

         23  number of young people that are part of this

         24  program.

         25                 Thanks.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I cannot think

          3  of anything to say to either of those comments,

          4  other than, AMEN.  Anyone have any questions?

          5                 MS. YANCHE:  If you would like to

          6  join us in Albany on March 1st, we will be going up

          7  to visit our State Law- makers asking them for

          8  funding as well.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Maybe we should

         10  do it before March 1st.

         11                 MS. YANCHE:  Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I mean, you

         13  know, I am very, very serious about the timing of

         14  all of this.  And I am being the eternal optimist, I

         15  am seriously hoping that the Administration here at

         16  the City will, you know, remove this from the dance,

         17  and actually step up say, I know that at the end of

         18  the game this is going to be the City's result,

         19  let's go to Albany with the money in our budget,

         20  putting it first, and that way we go to the State,

         21  you know, saying we have funded our share.  I really

         22  hope that that is going to happen, you know, for a

         23  change.

         24                 So maybe we really need to be talking

         25  to Albany before March 1st, because quite frankly,
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          2  as bad a job as we did in the City last year in

          3  meeting our obligations, what happened in the State

          4  was an absolute disgrace, and we can't let that

          5  happen again. I mean, where, you know, $6 million

          6  will probably go an awfully long way to meeting the

          7  2002 goal, and that is what they cost us last year

          8  by abject indifference while they were busy

          9  bickering over nonsense.

         10                 Anybody else?  Thank you very much.

         11                 MS. YANCHE:  On behalf of Susan and

         12  myself, I just want to end by saying, thank you very

         13  much, to you, Chairman Fidler, and to the entire

         14  members of the Youth Services Committee and the

         15  Council, as well as the staff for being the

         16  champions for this program and for young people that

         17  you have been.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you.

         19  Thank you for your help.

         20                 Okay, we are going to start doing the

         21  Noah thing and calling people in twos.  Doctor John

         22  Ryan from Police Athletic League, and Betsy

         23  Fabricant from Visions, please be our next

         24  witnesses.

         25                 DR. RYAN:  Thank you, Chairperson
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          2  Fidler and members of the Council, you know, for the

          3  lead in looking out for teenagers in New York City.

          4  The PAL during the summertime runs about 14 Summer

          5  Day Camps, and 140 play streets throughout the five

          6  boroughs of New York City servicing tens of

          7  thousands of young people with quality summer

          8  programming.  And the teenagers that are hired

          9  through the Summer Youth Employment Program are a

         10  very, very valuable resource in those efforts, in

         11  guaranteeing these programming to the children of

         12  the City of New York.  And they deserve the

         13  foresight and the planning well ahead of time to

         14  guarantee that they have a proper program for

         15  themselves.

         16                 I just wanted to speak to two issues,

         17  one of which was to revisit some of the discussion

         18  earlier on the transition from paper checks to debit

         19  cards.  The PAL has been one of the providers of

         20  sites where young people get paid three times during

         21  the course of the summer.  And just to paint a

         22  picture, a typical site may be at our Dunking Center

         23  in Midtown Manhattan.  And what would happen three

         24  times during the summer is up to 1,200 to 1,500

         25  teenagers would be gathered at one of these sites,
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          2  each of whom will be looking for a paycheck at the

          3  site.  And what happens is that people that have

          4  intentions that are not so good, also know that

          5  these 1,500 teenagers are gathering at this one

          6  site.  And it becomes, you know, a youth safety

          7  issue for the teenagers. Probably 80/90 percent of

          8  whom are not actually from that particular

          9  neighborhood and become targets for predators when

         10  they are leaving the site with their checks.

         11                 For the few that have had their

         12  checks taken, it becomes traumatic for a lot of

         13  reasons.  And when they lose that check, whether it

         14  is $110 first check they get, or the $220 for each

         15  of the subsequent three, is it becomes an all or

         16  nothing scenario.  You know once they lose that

         17  money for that time period, you know, they lose that

         18  $220.

         19                 With DYCD having moved to the debit

         20  card system, nobody is tracking these young people

         21  to see where they live, or when they are going to be

         22  cashing their checks, I'm sorry, using their debit

         23  cards, whether it is at a bank or purchasing

         24  something at Staples for their school.  So it

         25  introduces a level of autonomy, and makes anonymous
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          2  whose spending the money where, when, and how.

          3                 You know the final factor that PAL

          4  had to become involved with that effects allocation

          5  of City resources is that because we came to know

          6  that there were dangers to some of the young people

          7  having their checks taken, we always lean back on

          8  the New York City Police Force to provide people at

          9  our centers, both inside the center and also in the

         10  periphery of centers.  And again, by not having this

         11  scenario, it frees up certain numbers of New York

         12  City police officers not having to be tied up for

         13  five or six hours, you know, four times during the

         14  summer.

         15                 Second and unrelated issue I wanted

         16  to speak to was the way we go about selecting young

         17  people who get chosen for Summer Youth Employment.

         18  Although, I do recognize the value of the lottery

         19  system in raising the total number of young people

         20  that get to become engaged in a summer youth

         21  experience, you know, granted that most young people

         22  that become employ fall between the ages of 14 and

         23  18.  And if you have, on average, 40,000 during any

         24  one particular year, if you have a lottery system

         25  over four years, you are really servicing 160,000 as
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          2  opposed to a lessor number.  If you go with the

          3  proposition that you have a lottery system and

          4  someone different is being chosen each time.

          5                 However, there is also something to

          6  be said for a certain percentage of young people

          7  that are chosen in a Summer Youth Employment

          8  Program, being people that are chosen on, what I

          9  would call on merit basis.  And I am not talking

         10  about a large percentage, it might be 10 percent, or

         11  15 percent of the total population.  Because what

         12  happens is when a young person comes to be employed

         13  for a brief seven weeks in what to them is a very

         14  difficult and challenging culture, which a day camp

         15  could be, is a certain percentage of these young

         16  people learn the job very, very well.  And in our

         17  eyes become Merit Counselors, because they do the

         18  job so well.  They are looked up to by the young

         19  peers, whom they service, and they are also looked

         20  up to by the organizations that employ them for the

         21  summer.  By having them be given the opportunity to

         22  come back for subsequent summers, and again, I am

         23  talking about maybe 10 or 15 percent of the

         24  population, you are rewarding people that did a

         25  very, very good job.  And you know that kind of
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          2  parallels what happens both in a private and in

          3  government, where people that do a job over and

          4  above what is expected of them, you know, for their

          5  seven weeks get to be invited back to work again.

          6                 The second thing that creates, it is

          7  kind of parallel to what the Board of, I'm sorry,

          8  the Department of Education is attempting with their

          9  mentoring relationships, where they have experienced

         10  teachers helping out inexperienced teachers in the

         11  classroom to navigate, especially during their first

         12  two or three years of employment.  By allowing 10 or

         13  15 percent of "experienced" teenagers to come back

         14  and navigate for the inexperience 14 or 15- year-

         15  olds that comes into the system, it creates a kind

         16  of a layer of respected peer counseling at the level

         17  of our summer day camp and play street employment,

         18  which is invaluable to both the adults' staff and

         19  the professional staff in organizations to have that

         20  extra layer of support for our young people.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Ms. Fabricant,

         23  you submitted your written testimony, please, if you

         24  would give us your highlights.  Don't read it,

         25  because I promise you before I had my first summer
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          2  job, I could read it.  And I think Alan learned it

          3  sometime between college and law school too, so,

          4  thank you.

          5                 MS. FABRICANT:  Okay, first I want to

          6  thank the Committee for being such wonderful

          7  advocates for youth and also for youth with

          8  disabilities.  I am here representing

          9  VISIONS/Services for the Blind and Visually

         10  Impaired, and we provide jobs to youth that are

         11  blind throughout New York City.  We have worked with

         12  four different contractors last summer, and of the

         13  60 youth that we provided jobs for last summer, 30

         14  were eligible through the Summer Youth Employment

         15  Program.

         16                 VISIONS puts in a lot of time and

         17  effort to get these kids to be successful in the

         18  jobs.  Unlike other students that can see a flyer on

         19  the wall and know that there is an opportunity to

         20  sign up for a job for the summer, our students have

         21  to be personally recruited, told about it, hand-

         22  held through the application process because of the

         23  difficulty in their travel, being able to learn how

         24  to get to our center to enroll, also to help them

         25  with the application process, since forms are not
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          2  available in Braille or large print for our

          3  students.  We put in a tremendous amount of work.

          4                 Also, once the students have been

          5  selected, and are eligible collecting the documents,

          6  getting their parents to come in and sign off, like

          7  every other agency, it is very difficult getting

          8  those documents.  But our kids, in particular, it is

          9  even more difficult because they have to rely on

         10  other people to help them to get the forms together

         11  that they need.

         12                 The current RFP did not allow VISIONS

         13  to apply as a contractor in that you need to serve

         14  at least 300 students, and it is community- based,

         15  and we serve kids throughout the City.

         16                 So we are here to advocate not just

         17  for jobs, more jobs available for youth with

         18  disabilities, but also to allow some of these

         19  agencies that work so closely with the students, and

         20  make the jobs of the contractors that much easier to

         21  also get some sort of financial support to do the

         22  work that we do.  Once the kids are placed in the

         23  jobs that we find for them, we then work with the

         24  employers to not only train the employers on how to

         25  work with someone that is blind, how to guide a
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          2  blind person, but also provide adaptations to make

          3  their work successful in that particular

          4  environment.  So we spend a lot of time training,

          5  not just our students, but the employers also.

          6                 The debit cards work great for our

          7  kids, being able to access the telephone and know

          8  exactly what their balance is, for a blind student

          9  that is an amazing advantage.

         10                 Also we have found that things work

         11  much smoother, last summer than they have in any

         12  other summer that we have been involved in program

         13  for the last 15 years or more.

         14                 So, we are moving in the right

         15  direction.  I think it is wonderful that you are

         16  trying to find out how to advocate to get this money

         17  secured earlier.  It is very difficult when it takes

         18  this much time to get a student with a disability

         19  enrolled, and never to know whether or not they have

         20  been placed.  And many of our placements actually

         21  start before the Summer Youth Program, even start

         22  date, because of our camps and other placements.  We

         23  have to start them earlier than we even know.

         24                 So that is the gist of what I have in

         25  here.  Do you have any questions?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  No, I would

          3  suggest that probably the best way to solve both of

          4  the issues that each of you raised very

          5  independently, more jobs for our young people with

          6  disabilities, and making sure that people who had a

          7  job one year are able to come back, would be by

          8  increasing the number of jobs. And I, please don't

          9  misunderstand the questioning that we engaged in

         10  with the Commissioner as being a criticism of the

         11  debit card system in its entirety.

         12                 But truthfully the only criticism we

         13  did hear of a much, much better run program was from

         14  some people who had problems with the debit card

         15  system.  And I think the Commissioner has

         16  acknowledged that it can be improved.  And we

         17  certainly heard some other testimony that would

         18  indicate that there are other opportunities

         19  available to DYCD for it.

         20                 I remember from my summer job days

         21  the annoyance, the inconvenience of the process that

         22  it used to be of picking up your check.  You know,

         23  in my current work environment, if I took an entire

         24  day to get paid, it wouldn't work terribly well

         25  either.  It doesn't make a whole lot of sense in the
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          2  Summer Job Program for that to be, you know, well

          3  today, today's activity is going to get your

          4  paycheck, and that is what you do for the day.  It

          5  doesn't make any sense, and I just want to make sure

          6  that the debit card, the kinks in the debit card

          7  system are worked out.

          8                 As far as the notion of merit versus

          9  lottery, I think in theory that is, you know, merit

         10  is always a wonderful way to go.  The problem with a

         11  program like this, which again, is administered, you

         12  know, very quickly, very little notice

         13  unfortunately, and with a constant state of young

         14  people who don't have a guaranteed summer job until

         15  the very last minute out there looking for other

         16  summer plans, the difficulty that that adds to the

         17  process, is that any system other than the lottery

         18  turns into who do you know.  And we have been down

         19  that road in the City.  I don't know how to

         20  eliminate that from anything other than a lottery

         21  system, whereby knowing the right person is what

         22  gets you a summer job as opposed to having a fair

         23  opportunity.  So, that would be my only comment to

         24  that.

         25                 Council member?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes, thank

          3  you both for your very incisive and trusting

          4  testimony.  I just would like to ask Ms. Fabricant,

          5  you recommend, to prove the point my Chair made that

          6  we do read written testimony, that you recommend,

          7  you know, that 20 percent of Youth Employment should

          8  represent youth with disabilities.  What is your

          9  estimate of the current percentage?

         10                 MS. FABRICANT:  What was last summer,

         11  you mean?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes.

         13                 MS. FABRICANT:  Actually, I really

         14  don't know what the current percent was.  I know

         15  that contractors were asked, I think was it 5

         16  percent, 10 percent, 10 percent of their jobs be

         17  given to youth with disabilities.  I heard them

         18  announced this morning, I didn't get a copy of the

         19  DYCD testimony, but I think they said 11,000, was

         20  that accurate, jobs were given, 1,100, 1,100 jobs,

         21  and that is nowhere near the, you know, 20 percent,

         22  or 10 percent even, for that matter.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Why, how do

         24  you explain the differential even between the 10

         25  percent and the actual percentage, the 10 percent
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          2  that was recommended and the actual?

          3                 MS. FABRICANT:  I don't know if you

          4  heard that.  But what she said is not every

          5  contractor had the ability to provide jobs for youth

          6  with disabilities.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So to meet

          8  your 20 percent- -

          9                 MS. FABRICANT:  Only certain ones, I

         10  think, signed up to do it, only certain contractors.

         11    We were fortunate.  We work with four different

         12  contractors to get our students through the Summer

         13  Youth Employment Program.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I guess what

         15  I am getting at, and this will be my last question.

         16                 MS. FABRICANT:  We are not a

         17  contractor.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, I

         19  understand that.  That is why it would be helpful to

         20  have your input as to what specifically, or either

         21  of your input as to what the City needs to do to get

         22  that percentage up to provide these important jobs.

         23  Do we need to be more aggressive with training, do

         24  we need to provide additional incentives to

         25  contractors to deal with disability issues?  Do we
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          2  need to have a buddy system where in we put

          3  organizations such as yours and other disability

          4  organizations in kind of closer contact with our

          5  providers in advance of July?  I mean, what

          6  practically do you think we can do to get the - -

          7                 MS. FABRICANT:  That is a good

          8  question.  I mean I do think in our situation,

          9  because we have the knowledge and the skill to do

         10  it, there are other agencies out there serving

         11  different populations.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Right.

         13                 MS. FABRICANT:  We are serving blind

         14  students, which is a relatively small number

         15  compared to other agencies.  And I think that those

         16  agencies need to be involved to help the contractors

         17  through the process.  Because I think contractors

         18  immediately, the fear is, well, I don't have the

         19  supports, I can't be out there helping these kids be

         20  successful.  And these other agencies like ours,

         21  have that capacity to do that.  So I think your

         22  third point is probably the ideal situation.  We

         23  need to get more of those kids out there.  They

         24  represent over 28 percent, I think it is, of the

         25  population of youth.  And they are, our kids

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  especially, have been tremendously successful in

          3  their jobs because of the supports that they have

          4  gotten.  And I think that a lot of the contractors

          5  that are overwhelmed just by processing their 3,000

          6  kids, or their 2,000 kids, don't have that kind of

          7  support.  And you have to reach out to the agencies

          8  that do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Maybe, Mr.

         10  Chair, and to our DYCD representatives still

         11  present, which we appreciate, maybe one as part of

         12  this Focus Group process you are going through,

         13  maybe there needs to be a Focus Group or meeting

         14  with groups like VISIONS and all the other different

         15  agencies which specialize in serving kids with

         16  disabilities to try to brainstorm in advance of the

         17  next summer as to what more we can do for this, you

         18  know, very needy population.  And we thank you all

         19  very much.

         20                 MS. FABRICANT:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you very

         22  much.  Our next witnesses are kind of our other

         23  partners in this from the Campaign for Summer Jobs,

         24  Anthony Ng and Chloe Pullman.

         25                 MR. NG:  Good morning, Honorable
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          2  Chair Fidler, members of the Youth Services

          3  Committee.  My name is Anthony Ng, and I am the

          4  Legislative Advocate at United Neighborhood Houses,

          5  and one of the Co- Chairs of the Campaign for Summer

          6  Jobs.

          7                 MS. PULLMAN:  Good morning.  My name

          8  is Chloe Pullman, I am staff associate at the

          9  Neighborhood Family Services Coalition, and the

         10  other Co- Chair of the Campaign for Summer Jobs.

         11                 MR. NG:  As you know, our

         12  organizations have partnered to Chair this Campaign

         13  for the past five years, and to fight every year for

         14  the funding needed for the Summer Jobs Program.  Our

         15  Campaign is endorsed by 100 organizations across the

         16  City, and they, and us, appreciate your leadership

         17  on this issue. And I would like to recognize that

         18  some of the supporters are in the audience here

         19  today, some of the contractors and youth

         20  organizations that work with us on advocacy efforts.

         21                 We definitely thank the City Council

         22  for your strong and unwavering support on this

         23  issue, and appreciate that.  As has been said many

         24  times already today, I think our main suggestion for

         25  the upcoming year in terms of improving the program
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          2  is to ensure that the City baselines its share of

          3  dollars needed to run a program to serve 40,000

          4  young people in the Mayor's Preliminary Budget.  We

          5  would like to see those dollars in that budget.

          6                 As has been mentioned earlier, the

          7  City has put in about $17.7 million in terms of City

          8  Tax Levy dollars, that was a big part of its share

          9  last fiscal year, and we would like to see a good

         10  portion of those dollars in the Mayor's budget.  As

         11  you all have noted that this helps everyone in terms

         12  of being able to plan for an effective program,

         13  DYCD, the contractors, and all the way down.  You

         14  know, for an example, contractors, you know they

         15  need to submit for budgets for their, to hire their

         16  seasonal staff.  And if there are fewer dollars in

         17  ahead of time, it really hampers their ability to

         18  hire the staff they need to gear up and start the

         19  program.  So, definitely we see this as an important

         20  way to let the contractors do their job too.  And

         21  also DYCD needs to know ahead of time, how many

         22  young people they can definitely can serve.

         23                 So that is our main, primary

         24  suggestion.  And Chloe has some other points about

         25  improvements of the program that we liked and other
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          2  things.

          3                 MS. PULLMAN:  Well since 2003, when

          4  SYEP was transferred from the now defunct Department

          5  of Employment to DYCD, they have been really

          6  collaborative with contractors and improving the

          7  program, and incorporating it into their portfolio,

          8  and we will commend them for that effort to fund

          9  almost 34,000 jobs this past summer.

         10                 I think their leadership has been

         11  unprecedented in getting community involvement in

         12  restructuring the program.  There has been, as you

         13  know, the Focus Groups before the new RFP was

         14  released, and also the RFP following this summer

         15  where they just get the general feedback from CBOs.

         16  This type of communication and exchange between DYCD

         17  and program providers, and other stakeholders has

         18  been especially, it has been in the spirit of true

         19  partnership, and we recommend that all new program

         20  models be developed in this matter, in

         21  collaborativeness and equal exchange.

         22                 We had several changes to this past

         23  program that we commend DYCD for making.  We know it

         24  was very difficult given the difficult fiscal

         25  situation, especially the improved payroll system
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          2  and the debit cards.

          3                 Also, the flexibilities in the work

          4  schedule allowed unprecedented numbers of

          5  participants like summer school students, that were

          6  not previously able to manage a work schedule that

          7  conflicted with their summer school hours.  But they

          8  were able to this past summer.

          9                 Additionally, contractors were able

         10  to design and control educational workshops, which

         11  were a new component, and this included making it

         12  appropriate to their age groups, the quantity and

         13  quality of the curriculum.  And also increasing the

         14  administrative fee for the contractors new

         15  responsibilities in intake and enrollment.

         16                 I am just going to briefly mention

         17  our suggestions in the five areas, since the details

         18  are in our written testimony. We had five

         19  recommendations areas:  Intake, payroll system,

         20  education workshop, program monitoring, and CBO

         21  partnership.

         22                 We recommend that in the future

         23  intake be begun much earlier in the year, as has

         24  been voiced by other witnesses. Preferably in early

         25  spring so that the program can start in a more
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          2  organized and timely fashion.

          3                 In terms of payroll, we suggest that

          4  there is more up- front training of CBOs and

          5  children, I'm sorry, youth because it was not clear

          6  to some of the contractors how this was to be

          7  administered, and how to train kids in using debit

          8  cards.  And there were a lot of issues with the

          9  fees, and how to interact with banks.

         10                 In terms of education workshops, we

         11  also recommend more clarity in training the

         12  contractors so that they understand how they can

         13  tailor curricular to their specific needs, and how

         14  to structure the work hours for the workshops so

         15  that they can make it appropriate for the work

         16  schedules they have created for their job.

         17                 In terms of program monitoring we

         18  wanted to, again, commend DYCD for their

         19  responsiveness to contractor issues.  And we

         20  recommend that there are more resources available to

         21  DYCD in the future so that they can better respond

         22  to contractor needs.

         23                 And despite that there were several

         24  incidents with program monitoring, several

         25  contractors did have some issues with dealing with
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          2  their program monitors, and we recommend more

          3  customer- friendly training for those monitors in

          4  the future.

          5                 And finally, we ask that CBO feedback

          6  in the Focus Groups be taken into account by DYCD,

          7  and that they make it clear to CBOs that their

          8  information will be included and incorporated into

          9  next year's program.

         10                 MR. NG:  In closing, I think we just

         11  wanted to cite some statistics about the magnitude

         12  of young people that could be served by this program

         13  and youth unemployment.  As you all know, youth

         14  unemployment remains high in the City.  And just to

         15  give a little reflection of the DYCD's program, they

         16  have reported that they received about 70,000

         17  applications for last year's program, and 34,000

         18  young people were served.  So that means about

         19  36,000 young people did not have jobs.

         20                 The program served young people ages

         21  14 to 21.  In New York City about 10 percent of the

         22  population are young people, about 838,000 young

         23  people.  So the number of young people that DYCD

         24  served really only represents 4 percent of the young

         25  people who could access these jobs.  Now of course
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          2  young people, not only they get other summer jobs

          3  and the like through other sources.  But I think it

          4  is just the point being it reflects the need, and

          5  reflects, you know, what we are dealing with here.

          6  And as Michelle Yanche mentioned earlier, we do have

          7  a responsibility to prepare our workforce, the

          8  City's workforce for the future.  And that

          9  definitely, you know, with a first summer job, this

         10  is the first step for young people to earn money, to

         11  explore careers, and just develop job skills.

         12                 So, again, thank you for your

         13  leadership on this issue, and we look forward to

         14  working with you continuing on this. Thank you.

         15                 MS. PULLMAN:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you both,

         17  and we look forward to working with you, and going

         18  to Albany or Washington, wherever we have to go.

         19  And I do appreciate your bringing up the flexible

         20  scheduling, which I did not mention with the

         21  Commissioner, though she mentioned it in her

         22  testimony.  But I think that was a very significant

         23  improvement, and you know it was a no- brainer. Why

         24  it hadn't been done before, I think it probably was

         25  one of those things that came under, you know, the
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          2  hat of we had to make a change in the program at the

          3  last minute, and did we go from five days or

          4  shortening the hours, and then we realized that we

          5  had the flexibility, and I commend the Commissioner

          6  for that, for having done that.  And it is something

          7  that I think, you know, will carry forward.

          8                 So thank you both.  I am sorry, Alan?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes, just,

         10  Mr. Chairman, ditto.  And you mentioned earlier your

         11  appreciation to the Council for the Council's work

         12  and support of the program.  But you know, and the

         13  record should be clear that the Council's

         14  leadership, and the Council's role was Marshall- led

         15  by leadership of our Chair, Council Member Lew

         16  Fidler.  Thank you, only 20, anyway, no.  No, that

         17  needs to be stated, thank you very much.

         18                 MR. NG:  Definitely, definitely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, we have

         20  two final panels, and we are going to be thrown out

         21  of the room shortly.  So, I am going to,

         22  unfortunately, have to ask everyone to keep their

         23  remarks as brief as possible.  Robert Altman from

         24  Mosholu- Montefiore Community Center, and Diane

         25  Cancel from Pathways for Youth.  Did we lose Diane?
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          2  Okay, that will be even faster.  Robert, go for it.

          3                 MR. ALTMAN:  Thank you.  First of all

          4  thank you for allowing me to speak.  My name is

          5  Robert Altman.  I am the Assistant Executive of the

          6  Mosholu- Montefiore Community Center.  We are one of

          7  the largest project sponsors in the City.  We had

          8  close to 1,400 teens working this summer.  As you

          9  said, 2002 was the largest, we had 2,100 kids

         10  working in 2002.  So we have been reduced quite a

         11  bit.

         12                 We had an additional 150 WIA kids.

         13  We had close to 4,500 teenagers apply to our center.

         14    We would have had more, but many were discouraged.

         15                 This is my 11th year, and I have

         16  spoken to this Committee many, many times.  As a

         17  matter of fact, I think I have my name in one of

         18  these chairs, I have been here this many times.

         19                 I speak to you today as a social

         20  worker, educator, and as well as a person who cares

         21  very deeply for the teens, as you do.  I am sure

         22  there have been a lot of people who have spoken

         23  about the program.  I will not go over that, but I

         24  want to just go over some of the unmeasurable

         25  aspects of the program that these kids get.
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          2                 The sense of pride in finishing a job

          3  from beginning to end.

          4                 The sense of a pride of getting a

          5  paycheck.

          6                 Knowing that the teens are valued as

          7  a person.

          8                 Knowing that a kid, a teen who comes

          9  to us angry, leaves at the end of summer happy.

         10                 A caring young person.

         11                 These are unmeasurable things.  Many

         12  of our young people, in the last 11 years that I

         13  have done this, have gone onto college, have become

         14  social workers, nurses, lawyers, doctors, and yes,

         15  even politicians, because of summer youth.

         16                 As you know, a lot of us did get our

         17  first break through summer youth experience.

         18                 I don't think we do enough sell,

         19  selling ourselves on the good work that we do.  I

         20  think a number of people still think of this as a

         21  Welfare Program, a handout.  So I think we need to

         22  do a better selling job on telling the public the

         23  well worth this job, what the summer youth is all

         24  about.

         25                 We must all work together to ensure
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          2  this that summer youth continues.  I hope one day I

          3  will not have to come to this Committed, but until

          4  then, I will see you guys next year.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And I know you

          7  have come here each year that I have been here.

          8                 MR. ALTMAN:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And preached to

         10  the choir.  And I do hope that there will be a point

         11  where, as I said at the beginning, the dance isn't

         12  necessary and everyone accepts and acknowledges the

         13  importance of this program as something other than a

         14  handout.  And, you know, we will keep doing it.

         15                 MR. ALTMAN:  And I will see you next

         16  year.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I hope it won't

         18  be necessary. Not that I would miss it.  Thank you.

         19                 All right, our final witnesses are

         20  Kruti Pareth from The Valley, and Todd Seward, who

         21  is also here from PAL.

         22                 MS. PARETH:  Okay, getting shorter

         23  and shorter. Greetings, everybody.  My name is Kruti

         24  Pareth.  I am the Employment Coordinator at The

         25  Valley, Inc., which is a non- profit up in Harlem.

                                                            111

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  I would like to thank you, because I don't want to

          3  preach to the choir.  I am glad that we are on the

          4  same page.

          5                 First and foremost, thank you for

          6  being here, and I just want to greet the Honorary

          7  City Council members, as well as supportive staff,

          8  the CBO representatives that are here, and sincere

          9  appreciation to DYCD for their hard work, for their

         10  vision really in transforming the Employment Program

         11  over the summer.  A special appreciation for

         12  Anthony, as well as Chloe for their tireless,

         13  tireless advocacy work.

         14                 I am an Employment Coordinator, a

         15  leadership trainer, a social worker, and one of the

         16  best things about doing my job is that young people

         17  listen to me.  They listen to me because I'm talking

         18  about money.  They don't want to know how to do

         19  better in school, or why they should join that

         20  program, or go to the after- school program, or go

         21  to tutoring.  They want to know how can they get a

         22  job.  And when I can tie in working with academic

         23  success, when I can say you can have a job, if you

         24  show me an 80 average or better, they actually care

         25  to do better at school.  So we understand how
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          2  important this program is.

          3                 We also understand that employment

          4  training plus employment experience equals success.

          5  This summer we had a strong educational component

          6  tied into the Summer Youth Employment Program.  That

          7  was excellent, we could tie those loose pieces for

          8  young people so that they can be successful in the

          9  future.

         10                 Incidentally, in the last four days,

         11  I had two young people ask me for money on the

         12  street in Harlem, two young people. One was maybe

         13  18, recently out of jail, the second was 25.

         14  Eighteen year olds and twenty- five year olds, young

         15  people in our City should not be asking people for

         16  money in the street.  I gave them my card, I also

         17  gave them some money, but I gave them my card. I

         18  said, we are a resource for you.  We need to learn

         19  how to network.

         20                 I'm preaching to the choir, yes, I

         21  know how important that working is.  In upcoming

         22  Board meetings as well as cocktail parties, as well

         23  as family gatherings, we need to mention how the

         24  Summer Youth Employment Program is an all- inclusive

         25  program.  This is leadership training and youth
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          2  development at its best.

          3                 So I want to thank you, again, and I

          4  want to encourage you all to continue your advocacy.

          5    Please network, please continue to network.

          6  Please have those conversations that unfortunately

          7  don't happen enough, so that I don't have to run

          8  into another 18, 21, 14- year- old student, a young

          9  person in the street, asking me for money.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you.  I do

         12  want to thank everyone for coming, and thank

         13  everyone for their testimony this morning.  And I do

         14  hope that our point is heard.  I want to thank our

         15  Committee staff, Laura Popa, Perry Stein, Andy

         16  Wallace, and Peter Bruno for sitting in for Andy

         17  this morning.

         18                 We are, I hope that our next meeting

         19  going to address Resolution 653- A perhaps with a

         20  word change here or there, and do something that we

         21  don't usually do at the Council, and that is address

         22  a next year's budget issue before the Preliminary

         23  Budget comes out in a substantive and direct way.

         24  Unfortunately, that will not mean anything, if the

         25  Mayor does not partner with us in it.
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          2                 Susan mentioned that we need to

          3  depoliticize the process, and I very much agree with

          4  that.  I have no problem standing with any elected

          5  official from any party and in any part of the State

          6  that wants to stand there and say that they funded

          7  summer jobs, and did so in a way that will allow us

          8  to implement the program in a sane, sensible,

          9  productive way for as many young people as possible.

         10    And I look forward to the opportunity to do that

         11  with this Mayor or anyone else, even if it is

         12  Governor Pataki, or Senator Bruno, Speaker Silver,

         13  that our friends in Albany have to step up to the

         14  plate.

         15                 With that, I thank you all for

         16  coming, and I conclude this hearing.

         17                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:40)

         18                 (The following testimony was read

         19  into the record.)

         20

         21  Testimony of:

         22  Dianne Cancel

         23  Program Director, Workforce Investment Act In-

         24  School Program

         25  Co- Program Director, Summer Youth Employment
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          2  Program

          3  Pathways for Youth

          4                 Good morning, Honorable Chair Fidler

          5  and members of the Youth Services Committee.  My

          6  name is Dianne Cancel, and I am Program Director for

          7  the Workforce investment Act In- School Program and

          8  Co- Program Director for the Summer Youth Employment

          9  Program at Pathways for Youth.

         10                 To begin, I want to thank the Youth

         11  Services Committee for their support for the SYEP

         12  Program.  I also wish to thank the Department of

         13  Youth and Community Development (DYCD) for its

         14  commitment and efforts to improve the administrative

         15  process of SYEP and in their advocacy for increase

         16  funding to give our youth the opportunity for summer

         17  employment.

         18                 I have been managing the SYEP program

         19  for three summers now and want to suggest three key

         20  issues that would greatly assist our organization

         21  improve its capacity for quality delivery of

         22  services to our young people.

         23                 1.  Begin the process early.  Every

         24  year we are struggling to enroll our youth at the

         25  last minute because of lack of committed funds to
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          2  this program.  This puts an inordinately burden on

          3  CBOs to develop work sites, register youth, review

          4  documentations and appropriately place youth in work

          5  sites that meet their needs.  Last year we received

          6  over 1,200 applications for only 452 jobs. We were

          7  then given only a few weeks to enroll, interview,

          8  instruct and place them.  For many youth this is

          9  their first working experience and they and their

         10  parents need time to fully understand the process.

         11  It causes inefficiency in placement. WE also need

         12  lead time to schedule students for instruction in

         13  addition to their work hours.  We need lead time to

         14  inform work sites of the various schedules of their

         15  youth employees.  WE need time not only for the

         16  process, but to ensure that we have the number of

         17  qualified staff to provide the services efficiently.

         18                 2.  The debit card system was an

         19  improvement over the paycheck system.  However, for

         20  many of our youth they felt it was more of

         21  hindrance.  They were charged inordinately fees for

         22  accessing their money.  Even though instruction was

         23  provided, they felt it was confusing and difficult

         24  accessing information on hours and money deposited

         25  in their account.  The system must be made more user
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          2  friendly and the fees must be eliminated.  Every pay

          3  day there would be a line of frustrated youngsters

          4  and parents outside our door asking for their debit

          5  card.  Unsure of the hours they were paid for,

          6  unable to access their money.  I am aware this was

          7  the first year and applaud the efforts of DYCD, but

          8  the system needs to be made easier and access to pay

          9  stub information readily available to them.

         10                 3.  We need more flexibility with the

         11  educational workshops, both with the topics and when

         12  they can be offered. Certain topics need to be given

         13  before they begin their work experience.  For

         14  younger youth in their first work experience

         15  instruction needs to be different then for veteran

         16  older youth. Developing curriculums and delivering 7

         17  topics in 20 hours with various work schedules was

         18  an over burdening task, and we can use more freedom

         19  of choice in this service delivery area.

         20                 We want our youth to have a positive

         21  impression on their early work  experience that will

         22  carry them into the future.

         23                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         24  present, and we look forward in working with you to

         25  offer a more positive work experience for our youth.
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          2

          3  Testimony of:

          4  Alan Cheng

          5  Program Director

          6  Youth Employment Program

          7  Chinese- American Planning Council, Inc.

          8                 Ladies and gentlemen of the New York

          9  City Council,

         10                 First and foremost, thank you for the

         11  support of the Summer Youth Employment Program

         12  (SYEP) and for this opportunity to share some of my

         13  thoughts on this program.  I represent the Chinese-

         14  American Planning Council as the Director of our

         15  Youth Employment Program.

         16                 I don't think that I can emphasize

         17  anymore the importance of this program than what you

         18  have and will hear from UNHealed and my colleagues

         19  from around the City.  To sum things up, I would say

         20  that SYEP spells HOPE to thousands of households who

         21  make up this great city.  To be able to provide over

         22  30,000 jobs to teenagers is to give them hope...to

         23  be able to add to the income of families who are

         24  experiencing economic crisis is to give them

         25  hope...to provide youth with constructive ways to
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          2  spend their summers by giving back to their

          3  communities is to give our communities hope...and to

          4  help guide a young person into finding a career of

          5  his or her interest is to give them hope in the

          6  future.

          7                 I would like to thank the Department

          8  of Youth and Community Development (DYCD) for all of

          9  the improvements that were made in this summer's

         10  program.  This past summer, DYCD brought SYEP into

         11  the 21st century.  They did so with innovations such

         12  as a dedicated web site where youth can download

         13  applications and check their enrollment status; and

         14  ATM cards as a more efficient and safer way for

         15  youth to receive their summer pay.  I would also

         16  like to congratulate Commissioner Mullgrav on

         17  putting together a topnotch team of staff of true

         18  professionals to implement this year's program.

         19  Indeed, they were a pleasure to work with.  I

         20  believe that these and other improvements made this

         21  year's SYEP one of the smoothest that I have seen.

         22                 While these improvements did make

         23  this summer a good one for us, it is not to say that

         24  the program was perfect.  Like every other year in

         25  recent memory, this summer's program struggled at
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          2  the onset with the threat of lapses in funding.

          3  While the City did receive funding for over 30,000

          4  SYEP jobs, it was no where near what it had been in

          5  prior years.  Funding has always been the single

          6  biggest problem with SYEP.  Imaging having to run

          7  for your respective offices or jobs each and every

          8  year...this is close to what DYCD, CBOs, youth and

          9  parents have to do.  Every year, we have to start

         10  from scratch and fight for adequate funding for

         11  these jobs.  The interesting thing is that

         12  throughout the year, many elected officials agree

         13  and even state that SYEP is important to our city,

         14  yet each year, the discussions to fund this program

         15  adequately go way into the 11th hour and many times

         16  still end up being short.

         17                 At my organization, the Chinese-

         18  American Planning Council, we have had SYEP for over

         19  two decades.  We have fought each year for summer

         20  jobs for the youth in Chinese communities in

         21  Brooklyn, Queens, and Manhattan.  There were years

         22  when we were able to provide jobs to over 2,000

         23  teenagers.  This past summer we were able to employ

         24  about 300 youth.  Job slots have continued to be

         25  decreased while statistics will show that the
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          2  Chinese community in New York City has grown

          3  tremendously over the last couple of decades.  This

          4  math does not work for us, and I don't believe that

          5  it works for our city, and all the other ethnic

          6  groups that represent it.

          7                 I mentioned before that SYEP spells

          8  hope for many New Yorkers.  To not have committed

          9  funds for this program each year is to quench the

         10  hope of thousands of youth and New Yorkers impacted

         11  directly and indirectly by the summer jobs provided

         12  for by SYEP.  Many people say that the youth are our

         13  future.  Indeed they are...they are our future

         14  doctors, lawyers, accountants; business owners who

         15  will supply the goods we need; future police

         16  officers, firefighters, and paramedics who will

         17  protect us; future teachers and counselors of our

         18  children and grandchildren and who knows, maybe we

         19  will have some who will go onto have successful

         20  careers in politics.

         21                 I ask that you would set aside proper

         22  funding for this program each and every year.  Don't

         23  wait until the last minute, but make it so at the

         24  onset of the City's budget year.  If you do this,

         25  people in this City will know what you have done and
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          2  will thank you when parents no longer have to make

          3  alternate plans for their teenagers for the summer;

          4  when toddlers and the elderly are served by our

          5  youth at day care and senior centers; and when

          6  police do not have to worry about hardworking,

          7  productive youth getting themselves into trouble.

          8                 What you decide in this hall has a

          9  bearing on the future of not only this City's youth,

         10  but also on your future as well.  Their future...our

         11  future is in your hands.

         12                 Thank you very much for your time and

         13  for this opportunity.

         14                 Sincerely,

         15                 Alan Cheng

         16                 Program Director.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 12:40 p.m.)
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